
 
County Offices 

Newland 
Lincoln 

LN1 1YL 
 

23 November 2021 
 

Adults and Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee 
 

A meeting of the Adults and Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee will be held on 
Wednesday, 1 December 2021 at 10.00 am in Council Chamber, County Offices, Newland, 
Lincoln LN1 1YL for the transaction of the business set out on the attached Agenda.  
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
Debbie Barnes OBE 
Chief Executive 
 
 
Membership of the Adults and Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee (11 Members of 
the Council) 
 
Councillors C E H Marfleet (Chairman), A M Key (Vice-Chairman), T A Carter, M R Clarke, 
Mrs N F Clarke, R J Kendrick, K E Lee, Mrs M J Overton MBE, R A Wright, T V Young and 
1 Vacancy 
 
 

Public Document Pack





ADULTS AND COMMUNITY WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE AGENDA 
WEDNESDAY, 1 DECEMBER 2021 

 
 
Item Title 

 
Pages  

1  Apologies for Absence/Replacement Members  
 

 

2  Declarations of Members' Interests  
 

 

3  Minutes of the meeting held on 20 October 2021  
 

5 - 12 

4  Announcements by the Chairman, Executive Councillor and Lead 
Officers  
 

 

5  Overview of Adult Mental Health Services in Lincolnshire  
(To receive a presentation from Sarah Connery, Chief Executive of 
Lincolnshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust, and Justin Hackney, 
Assistant Director Specialist Adult Services, which provides an 
overview of adult mental health services in Lincolnshire) 
 

13 - 28 

6  Occupational Therapy, Disabled Facilities Grants and the Lincolnshire 
Community Equipment Service  
(To receive a report by Roz Cordy, Interim Assistant Director – Adult 
Frailty and Long Term Conditions, Gareth Everton, Head of Integration 
and Transformation and Prashant Agrawal, Partnership Manager, LCES, 
which invites the Committee to note progress supports the in principle 
plans for future alignment of occupational therapy, DFG and LCES 
services through a Good Homes Agency) 
 

29 - 38 

7  Lincolnshire Adults Safeguarding Board - Update Report  
(To receive a report by Heather Roach, Independent Chair – Lincolnshire 
Safeguarding Adults Board, which provides an overview of the role and 
work of the Lincolnshire Adults Safeguarding Board including an update 
in relation to the Team Around the Adult project) 
 

39 - 44 

8  Service Level Performance against the Corporate Performance 
Framework - Quarter 2  
(To receive a report by Caroline Jackson, Head of Corporate 
Performance, which  summarises the Adults and Community Wellbeing 
Service Level Performance for Quarter 2) 
 

45 - 88 

9  Adults and Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee Work 
Programme  
(To receive a report by Simon Evans, Health Scrutiny Officer, which 
provides the Committee with an opportunity to consider and comment 
on its current Work Programme) 
 

89 - 94 

 

 



 
 

Democratic Services Officer Contact Details  
 
Name: Emily Wilcox 

 
Direct Dial 07557 486687 

 
E Mail Address emily.wilcox@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 

Please note:  for more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting 
 

 Business of the meeting 

 Any special arrangements 

 Copies of reports 
 
Contact details set out above. 
 
Please note: This meeting will be broadcast live on the internet and access can be 
sought by accessing Agenda for Adults and Community Wellbeing Scrutiny 
Committee on Wednesday, 1st December, 2021, 10.00 am (moderngov.co.uk) 
 
All papers for council meetings are available on: 
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/council-business/search-committee-records 
 

 

https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=550&MId=5713&Ver=4
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=550&MId=5713&Ver=4
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/council-business/search-committee-records


  1 

 
 ADULTS AND COMMUNITY WELLBEING 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 20 OCTOBER 2021 

 

PRESENT:  COUNCILLOR C E H MARFLEET (CHAIRMAN) 
 
Councillors A M Key (Vice-Chairman), T A Carter, M R Clarke, R J Kendrick, K E Lee, 
Mrs M J Overton MBE, R A Wright and T V Young 
 
Councillors Mrs W Bowkett, C Matthews and E J Sneath attended the meeting as observers 
 
Officers in attendance: 
 
Simon Evans (Health Scrutiny Officer), Glen Garrod (Executive Director - Adult Care and 
Community Wellbeing), Justin Hackney (Assistant Director - Specialist Adult Services) and 
Emily Wilcox (Democratic Services Officer)  
 
Officers in attendance via Microsoft Teams: Gareth Everton (Head of Integration and 
Transformation), Emma Farley, Alina Hackney (Senior Strategic Commercial and 
Procurement Manager - People Services) and Emma Rowitt (Project Manager)  
 
Officers in attendance via Microsoft Teams: 
 
30     APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE/REPLACEMENT MEMBERS 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors B Adams and Mrs N F Clarke.  
 
31     DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS 

 
There were no declarations of interest at this point in the meeting. 
 
32     MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 8 SEPTEMBER 2021 

 
RESOLVED:  
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 8 September 2021 be approved as a correct record 
and signed by the Chairman. 
 
33     CARE QUALITY COMMISSION - ADULT SOCIAL CARE UPDATE 

 
Consideration was given to a report by the Inspection Manager – Care Quality Commission, 
which provided an update on the work of the Care Quality Commission (CQC) in conjunction 
with Lincolnshire County Council. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



2 
ADULTS AND COMMUNITY WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
20 OCTOBER 2021 
 
The Committee was informed that the CQC was the independent regulator of health and 
adult social care in England whose purpose was to ensure health and social care services 
provide people with safe, effective, compassionate, high-quality care, using the monitoring 
of services to inform its inspection schedule.  
 
During the Covid-19 pandemic, the CQC had adapted how they regulated their work within 
the health and social care system. Although routine inspection was paused temporarily, 
regulating continued through enhanced monitoring of services.  
 
Driven by the need to adapt to the pandemic, the CQC had implemented new ways of 
working and had made progress in how services were monitored. The CQC would continue 
to monitor services using a risk-based approach by using risk based decisions to inform 
inspection activity. Inspections would be carried out to services classified as having a 
significant risk and enforcement action would be taken where necessary to ensure that 
services were working at a safe and adequate standard.  
 
Members considered the report, and during the discussion the following points were noted:  
 

 Inspection teams were subject to their own internal monitoring which would include 
assessing the effectiveness of a risk-based approach. Monitoring was undertaken 
using a range of methods including sampling, external quality measures, fluidity 
processes and formal evaluation.  

 The CQC acknowledged that there were significant issues with staffing and within the 
social care sector. Inspectors would use their judgement when assessing high risk 
services to ensure that they were being fair to services with staffing issues that were 
unavoidable. Lincolnshire County Council (LCC) had implemented a workforce 
strategy in which they worked alongside the relevant partners to evaluate the most 
effective and creative ways to ease staffing issues.  

 The CQC had a national team which received intelligence on unregistered care 
providers and took steps to proactively remove them from the market.  

 As a regulator, the CQC did not have a quality assurance function and would not 
provide direct advice on matters. However, when it was deemed appropriate, the 
CQC would signpost providers to local services.  

 The role of LCC was to ensure that services were compliant with requirements and 
provide quality assurance, working with providers where change and support was 
required.  

 Solutions to issues within the care sector often relied on a collective approach from a 
number of partners to find appropriate solutions.  

 Of the nine care providers within Lincolnshire that had received an 'inadequate' 
rating from the CQC, three had been closed but had not yet been de-registered; one 
had been inspected and had indicated a level of improvement; and five were still 
deemed high risk, with enforcement work on-going and additional conditions 
required of their registration. If at any point the CQC were concerned about a service 
which was being monitored, they would visit the service for an inspection and take 
action where necessary.  

Page 6



3 
ADULTS AND COMMUNITY WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

20 OCTOBER 2021 
 

 LCC also provided weekly monitoring and monthly inspections to providers who were 
deemed high risk.  

 There was a growing number of care provisions within Lincolnshire that had been 
rated 'outstanding' by CQC, around 2% more than the national average.  

 The Executive Councillor for Adult Care and Community Wellbeing emphasised the 
importance of ensuring that carers felt valued and were recognised for their 
important role within the County. The Council would be working with carers to 
ensure that their hard work was acknowledged.  

 The Committee suggested that low wages and long working hours were contributing 
to issues with staff recruitment and retention in the adult social care sector and that 
many staff were not adequately rewarded for their hard work. However, it was 
acknowledged that LCC were a living wage employer and the Council had no control 
over the rates paid by private healthcare providers.  

 The Committee was hugely reassured by the report and the work of the CQC in 
conjunction with the Council.  

 It was suggested that more could be done to encourage young people to consider 
caring as a career.  

 The Committee welcomed a further report from the CQC in 2022 following the 
publication of the CQC annual report.  

 
RESOLVED:  
 
 That the report be noted and a further report be received in one year.  
 
34     ANNOUNCEMENTS BY THE CHAIRMAN, EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR AND LEAD 

OFFICERS 
 

The Chairman announced that discussions had begun regarding the establishment of a 
working group on hidden sugars in foods, as proposed by the Committee at their last 
meeting. The working group would support a sub group of the Health and Wellbeing Board.  
 
Members were reminded that a training session on the Care Act would take place following 
the meeting.    
 
35     OVERVIEW OF SPECIALIST ADULT AND SAFEGUARDING SERVICES 

 
Consideration was given to a report by the Assistant Director – Specialist Services, which 
provided an overview of Specialist Adult and Safeguarding Services in Lincolnshire, focussing 
on the following areas:  
 

 Learning disability services, including Learning Disability Section 75 Agreement 
between LCC Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group 

 In house day opportunities, including developing a more expanded offer across day 
centre buildings  

 Mental health related services  

Page 7



4 
ADULTS AND COMMUNITY WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
20 OCTOBER 2021 
 

 Adult safeguarding  

 Key priorities for 2021-22 within specialist adult services 

 Key priorities for 2021-22 for safeguarding 
 
Further to the report, the Committee was informed that Lincolnshire Partnership NHS 
Foundation Trust (LPFT) were commissioned to deliver the key functions for the assessment 
and care management function of mental health on behalf of LCC, which allowed them to 
coordinate clinical health services with social care services, meaning a more joined up 
experience for the service user.  
 
Further explanation was provided on the Team around the Adult (TAA) project, which was a 
multi-agency approach that sought to help those who were otherwise struggling to engage 
with services, often people who were homeless, at risk of mental health issues, or addiction 
issues. Should a person be identified for the service, a TAA Strategy meeting would be held 
to ensure that the right teams of people were utilised to achieve the best outcome for the 
individual. The approach taken was specific to each individual needs as it was recognised 
that individuals had complex needs which required a tailored approach.  
 
The Committee watched a video clip which provided an insight into the day to day activities 
part of day care services across the County. Officers commended the person-centred 
planning and creativity of staff across the centres.  
 
The Committee considered the report and during the discussion the following points were 
noted:  

 The Lincolnshire Transforming Care figures were specific to adults with learning 
disabilities. Within Lincolnshire there were 30 people with learning disabilities and 
autism in inpatient facilities and detained under the mental health act, which was 
around 10% less than the national target. It was acknowledged that LCC were behind 
the trajectory however there was a level of confidence that the target would be met 
by the end of the calendar year. Officers emphasised the importance of ensuring the 
right services were able to be provided when patients were discharged.  

 The Council hoped to expand their offer for day care opportunities as they were seen 
as essential to supporting people with mental health issues.   

 Providing an individual qualified for adult social care, there was no waiting list for day 
care opportunities. LCC hoped to expand the day-care offer so that it was inclusive to 
anybody with a primary support reason with an assessed need, rather than just those 
with learning disabilities.  

 Members welcomed a preventative approach to adult care, with the use of day care 
facilities as a step to maximise independence across the adult care sector.  

 Lincolnshire's suicide prevention strategy was led by Public Health and the rise in 
male suicides across East Lindsey was being investigated. The Committee was 
reminded that a report on Mental Health would be considered at the next meeting of 
the Committee which would provide an opportunity to discuss this topic in more 
detail.   

Page 8



5 
ADULTS AND COMMUNITY WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

20 OCTOBER 2021 
 

 It was important that regardless of financial status, all people could access the 
services that they required. 

 Members congratulated officers and commended the hard work that had been 
undertaken which had led to a successful day care service and welcomed the 
opportunity to expand services to provide a more holistic approach for the centres.  

 The Committee commended the TAA Adult pilot scheme and supported it being 
developed further following the end of the pilot. A summary of the success of the 
pilot would be reported back to the committee on its conclusion.  

 The Team around the Adult project had evolved from a Serious Adult Review which 
identified a need for a different approach to certain cases.  

 
RESOLVED:  
 
 That the report be noted. 
 
36     ADULT CARE AND COMMUNITY WELLBEING FINANCIAL POSITION 2021-22 

 
Consideration was given to a report by the Strategic Finance Manager which invited the 
Committee to note the 2021-22 financial position for the Adult Care and Community 
Wellbeing service.  
 
The Committee was advised that the Adult Care and Community Wellbeing directorate were 
forecasting an underspend of £1.104m for 2021/22, which was largely due to maximisation 
of Covid-19 grants for the redeployment of workforce and commissioned services.  
 
The Council continued to receive Covid-19 grant funding and were projecting full utilisation 
of the £29m within Adult Care and Community Wellbeing in 2021. The main areas of funding 
were £11.1m in outbreak management; £9.83m which had been passported to providers for 
infection control; £2m from a national discharge model which had been extended to the end 
of financial year; and £1.4m forecast for Lincolnshire's community testing infrastructure.  
 
An early review of the September position suggested that early indicators were unlikely to 
change significantly from the £1.104m underspend projected in August 2021.  
 
The medium term financial plan indicated some potential pressures greater than the base 
budget for 2022-23 onwards. This was driven by growing demand in working age adult social 
care services and the need to reflect the market conditions within the rates paid to 
commissioned providers. 
 
The Committee considered the report and during the discussion the following points were 
noted:  
 

 Debts over £25,000 were often property debts due to the Council having to operate 
under the provisions of the Care Act, meaning where there is was property that was 
assessable on financial assessment, people were entitled to join the third party 
payment process. legal representations from the Office of the Public Guardian had to 

Page 9



6 
ADULTS AND COMMUNITY WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
20 OCTOBER 2021 
 

be made and debts continued to accrue at a self-funding rate until all information 
had been provided to calculate the cost of care.  

 The underspend of £1.104m would be available to cover cost pressures in other 
areas.  

 An increase in demand and issues with recruitment had meant that there had been 
issues with the supply of homecare. The Council were struggling to compete with 
competitors on the price inflation.  

 The £86,000 cap on lifetime care would not include 'hotel costs', which was the cost 
of the accommodation provided during the care. The 'hotel cost' would still be borne 
by the individual.  

 Officers were anticipating that upcoming changes to the budget would impact the 
adult care and community wellbeing directorate. Assessments would be made once 
the budget had been announced.   

 The Hoplands Extra Care facility in Sleaford would consist of 60 extra care units with 
the potential for some learning disability bungalows.  

 
RESOVLED: 
 
 That the Adult Care and Community Wellbeing financial performance and the key 
 issues be noted. 
 
37     EXTRA CARE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AT PREBEND LANE WELTON WITH LACE 

HOUSING LIMITED 
 

Prior to the report being presented, the Committee resolved that: 
 
In accordance with Section 100 (A)(3) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and 
public be excluded from the meeting as the information due to be discussed was considered 
to be exempt information as contained in part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972.  
 
Following a discussion, the Committee then moved back into public session and welcomed 
back the Press and Public for the remainder of the meeting.  
 
12:25 – Councillor R Wright left the meeting and did not return.  
 
Consideration was then given to a report by the Head of Integration and Transformation, 
which invited the Committee to consider a report on the Extra Care Housing development at 
Prebend Lane Welton with LACE Housing Limited, which was due to be considered by the 
Executive on the 2 November 2021. 
 
The scheme which would operate between Lincolnshire County Council (LCC) and LACE 
Housing Limited to provide Extra Care Housing for the anticipated demand in the West 
Lindsey district.  
 

Page 10



7 
ADULTS AND COMMUNITY WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

20 OCTOBER 2021 
 

The report recommended that a further £1.6 million of the remaining £7.044 million 
designated capital programme budget be released to enable the Prebend Lane Scheme in 
Welton to commence development in autumn 2022, in which LCC would have nomination 
rights for a period of 30 years on 20 of the 62 units due to be developed, using a process of 
first refusal with no void risk.  
 
The Scheme sought to provide alternative accommodation choice for older people and aim 
to maximise independence and improve wellbeing. LCC's contribution to the Prebend Lane 
Scheme would be on the condition that LACE Housing Limited acquired relevant approvals, 
obtains planning permission, and secured the additional funding required.  
 
The investment would look to save £57,000 a year in terms of reduced out care costs which 
would mean a return investment in year 23 out of the 30 year programme.  
 
The Executive Councillor for expressed her enthusiasm for the project as an additional extra 
care scheme for Lincolnshire.  
  
Members considered the report and during the discussion the following points were noted:  
 

 Extra Care Housing provided individual units and communal space that would reduce 
the risk of social isolation. Extra care housing was a form of specialist housing and 
was not formally defined, as it could include a range of support provided to 
individuals.  

 All had their own housing agreement and had made a choice to live in an extra care 
housing development.  

 The length of time that people spent in extra care housing was dependent on the 
level of need of the individual, but it was usually the case that people lived in extra 
care housing considerably longer than those going into care homes.  

 Unlike people entering residential care, people who lived in specialist housing, such 
as extra care hosing, had rights as they owned or rented extra their property in extra 
care housing facilities.  

 The proposed communal dining area would likely be a dining room with a lounge 
area, but the level of provision would be determined by the residents of each extra 
care housing scheme.  

 The council had worked with and contracted services by LACE Housing many times on 
a range of projects across the County.  

 The rented units would be targeted to people in Lincolnshire that would otherwise 
not be able to afford private extra care housing facilities.  

 The rental properties would not be subject conditions set out in the Governments 
Right to Buy scheme.  

 Further extra care developments were being considered, subject to further 
agreement, for Boston, Horncastle, Market Deeping and Spalding, each with the 
involvement of the relevant district council. Schemes were already progressing in 
Lincoln and Sleaford, after previous approvals. 

Page 11



8 
ADULTS AND COMMUNITY WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
20 OCTOBER 2021 
 

 The figure of 20 hours a week of extra care had been seen to represent the needs of 
all those housed in extra care facilities. The package could be tailored to provide a 
range of support needs for each individual.  

 The Committee welcomed the opportunity utilise the Council's to One Public Estate 
programme to provide further opportunities for extra care housing which would 
relieve the pressure on other services. It was confirmed that LCC were in regular 
discussion with NHS colleagues regarding the potential for similar opportunities 
across Lincolnshire.  

 The Committee unanimously supported the scheme and welcomed further additions 
and the expansion of the Council's Extra Care Housing in future. 

 
RESOLVED:  
 

1) That the recommendations to the Executive be supported;  
 

2) That a summary of the comments made be passed on to the Executive as part of 
their consideration of this item.  

 
 
38     ADULTS AND COMMUNITY WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK 

PROGRAMME 
 

Consideration was given to a report by the Health Scrutiny Officer which invited the 
Committee to consider its work programme.  
 
Members were referred to the Work Programme which could be found on 122-23. There 
had been no changes to the work programme since the publication of the agenda.  
 
RESOLVED:  
 
 That the work programme be noted. 
 
 
The meeting closed at 12.50 pm 

Page 12



       
 

Open Report on behalf of Glen Garrod,  
Executive Director - Adult Care and Community Wellbeing 

 

Report to: Adults and Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 01 December 2021 

Subject: Overview of Adult Mental Health Services in Lincolnshire  

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

The purpose of this report is to introduce a presentation by Sarah Connery, Chief 
Executive of Lincolnshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust and Justin Hackney, 
Assistant Director Specialist Adult Services which provides an overview of adult mental 
health services in Lincolnshire. 

 

 

Actions Required: 

The Committee to note the content of the presentation. 
 

 
1. Background 
 
This is one of a series of presentations provided to the Adults and Community Wellbeing 
Scrutiny Committee to highlight roles and responsibilities of LCC officers and related 
partners. This presentation is related to adult mental health services in Lincolnshire.  
 
The majority of mental health services are provided by Lincolnshire Partnership NHS 
Foundation Trust (LPFT) and commissioned by NHS England and/or the Lincolnshire 
Clinical Commissioning Group. However Adult Care also work in partnership with LPFT and 
wider stakeholders in the provision of our relevant statutory functions.  
 
 
2. Conclusion 
 
The presentation provides an opportunity for the committee to understand more about 
adult mental health services in Lincolnshire. 

 
 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



3. Consultation 
 
a) Risks and Impact Analysis 
 

The County Council maintains a Corporate Risk Register that covers all service areas 
including Adult Care and Wellbeing. There are no specific risks that are highlighted to the 
committee as part of this presentation. 
 
4. Appendices 
 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Adult Mental Health Services Presentation 

 
 
5. Background Papers 
 
No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 
in the preparation of this report. 
 
 
This report was written by Justin Hackney, who can be contacted on 07774661042 or 
justin.hackney@lincolnshire.gov.uk. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 14



Health and Wellbeing Board 

Mental Health in Lincolnshire 
Sept 2021  

Sarah Connery 

Chief Executive Officer 

LPFT 

P
age 15



P
age 16



Our services 
Adult community 

• Steps2change  

• Community mental health 

• Community rehabilitation 

• Community forensic 

• Psychological therapies 

• Perinatal mental health 

• Criminal justice liaison and 

diversion 

• Personality and complex trauma 

• Holistic Health for Homeless 

• Social care 

 

Adult inpatient 

• Acute inpatient 

• Reablement 

• Psychiatric intensive care 

• Mental health rehabilitation 

• Low secure forensic inpatient 

• Crisis and home treatment 

• Clinical decisions unit 

P
age 17



Our services 
Older adult  

• Inpatient – cognitive and 

functional 

• Community 

• Mental health hospital liaison 

• Neuropsychology 

• Physical healthcare 

psychology 

• Home treatment – dementia 

and mental health 

 

Specialist 

• Children and adolescent 

mental health – community 

and crisis support 

• Healthy Minds Lincolnshire 

• Mental Health Support Teams 

• Learning disabilities 

• Eating disorders 

• Dietetics  

• Veterans mental health 

• Sexual assault referral centre 

 

P
age 18



COVID-19 response and recovery 
• Fantastic support and work from our staff and volunteers. 

• Continued to adapt to need with a digital first, but not digital only 

approach. 

• Implemented wide range of alternative ways of contact, but still saw 

most at risk face to face. 

• Up skilled staff for physical healthcare needs. 

• Extended community support to prevent hospital admission. 

• Found ways to continue to support carers virtually. 

• Thorough infection prevention and control measures. 

 

P
age 19



Transformation 

P
age 20



• Strengthened partnerships with primary, secondary 

and voluntary sectors. 

• New 24hr helplines for adults and young people. 

• New services for community rehab and personality 

and complex trauma. 

• Integrated place based teams. 

• Embedding social prescribers, peer support and 

community connectors. 

• Investment in voluntary, community and social 

enterprise sector. 

• Night Light Cafes and community hubs. 

 

Community mental health transformation 
One of 12 early implementers in England, initially in Boston, Gainsborough, Grantham and 

Lincoln but expanding across the county. 

P
age 21



New patient environments 
£37m + investment in 

mental health wards 
• Replacing outdated adult acute 

wards in Boston and Lincoln. 

• Individual ensuite bedrooms, 

increased access to outdoor spaces 

and modern therapeutic 

environments. 

• Peter Hodgkinson Centre due to 

open early 2023. 

• Phase one in Boston – Reproviding 

Ward 12 from Pilgrim Hospital at 

Norton Lea site currently at 

business case phase. 

P
age 22



Increasing demand and acuity 

There are significant increases in demand across 

a number of services, most notably in: 

 

• Crisis Services 

• Early intervention in psychosis 

• Perinatal mental health 

• Sexual assault services 

• Children and young people mental 

health/eating disorders 

• Adult eating disorders 

• Autism diagnosis 

P
age 23



System working 

Mental Health Learning Disability  

and Autism Partnership Group 

Children and 

Young People  

Transformation 

Board 

Community MH 

Transformation 

Delivery Group 

(chair MB/RR) 

Out of Area 

Mental Health 

and PICU 

(chair CH) 

Contract  

Management 

Groups 

Crisis Care  

Concordat 

Learning 

Disability 

Transformation 

& Delivery Group 

Joint  

Accommodation 

Strategy Group 

Transforming 

Care Partnership 

Board 

Prevention  

Concordat 

P
age 24



LPFT/LCC Section 75 

• Section 75 of the NHS Act 2006: allows partners (NHS bodies and 

councils) to contribute to a common fund which can be used to 

commission health or social care related services. This power allows a 

local authority to commission health services and NHS commissioners 

to commission social care. 

• LPFT Section 75 Agreement facilitates: Assessment and Care 

Management for 18- to 64-year-olds with Primary Support Reason of 

Mental Illness, Best Interest Assessments for Deprivation of Liberty and  

Day Time Approved Mental Health Professionals. 

• Allows better operational co-ordination of support for people needing 

care and support. 

P
age 25



Proposed Complex Case - 

Section 75 

• Task and Finish Group established to work up proposal for Section 75 Agreement for 

Adults with Complex Needs. 

• Partnership between LCC, Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group (LCCG) and 

Lincolnshire Partnership Foundation Trust (LPFT). 

• Roughly 350 Adults with complex needs and a learning disability, autism and/or mental 

illness across commissioners and providers. 

• Adults with gross costs of care over £1,500 per week including Transforming Care 

discharges since 2015, other mental health inpatient discharges, people with history of 

index offences, behaviour that challenges, risk of admission or re-admission due to 

inappropriate sexualised behaviour. 

• Integrated Assessment and Care Management Team to provide more joined up care co-

ordination, more expert knowledge and experience, with tailored training leading to 

improved outcomes. 

• Pooled budget with joined up approach to managing the market for complex care – via 

the Joint Accommodation Strategy Group. 

P
age 26



Joint Accommodation Strategy 

Group 

• JASG: Integrated working between LCC, LPFT, LCG, NHSE, District 

Council’s. 

• Aim: To maximise people’s independence and reduce reliance on 

institutional care with specific focus on development of alternative 

accommodation options; 

• Sourcing Group and Plan: Brings together commissioning, 

procurement, property and housing experts across relevant 

organisations together in one place to source what is needed and to 

take forward joint initiatives; 

• Examples: Supported Living: Elseforde Gardens Sleaford, Hoplands 

Sleaford, Wragby, Boston, Sibsey, Complex Case – Lincoln, review of 

quality and affordability of rented accommodation County wide. 

 

P
age 27



Any questions? P
age 28



 
 

       
 

Open Report on behalf of Glen Garrod,  
Executive Director - Adult Care and Community Wellbeing 

 

Report to: Adults and Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 01 December 2021 

Subject: 
Occupational Therapy, Disabled Facilities Grants and the 
Lincolnshire Community Equipment Service  

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

The Housing, Health and Care Delivery Group (HHCDG) leads strategic implementation 
of the Lincolnshire Homes for Independence blueprint, steering services to be better 
co-ordinated and changing working practices to enable this. The HHCDG reports to the 
Health and Wellbeing Board. 
 
The objectives of the Better Care Fund (BCF) for the health and care system, and 
Lincolnshire County Council's (LCC) new Corporate Plan include providing residents 
with ‘the opportunity to live life to the full’ by acting to ‘promote safe and secure 
homes and provide opportunities for a fulfilling life’ with the result that ‘more people 
are able to live independently and everyone enjoys a safe and secure home and is 
protected from harm’.  
 
Occupational Therapy, Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) and the Lincolnshire Community 
Equipment Service (LCES) are key components of this. 
 
DFGs are administered by district councils and delivery is overseen by the District 
Housing Network (DHN). Several service improvements have been made over recent 
years. However, during the Covid-19 pandemic efforts have been focussed on 
maintaining an effective service and keeping people safe while progressing with 
necessary adaptations to their home. Now we move towards recovery, it is time to 
accelerate the delivery plan actions around better connecting DFG with the wider 
health and care system.  District councils are now represented on the Joint Working 
Executive Group (JWEG) for the Integrated Care System (ICS) which supports this. 
 
The LCES has its own Partnership Board with representation from LCC and the NHS. 
Contract variations to the LCES have ensured that it responded to the Covid-19 
pandemic and supported the wider response, such as through the provision of 
personal protective equipment (PPE) and testing kits. The focus is now on re-
commissioning the new LCES. 
 

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



 
 

The Scrutiny Committee received a report on Adult Care Occupational Therapy which 
referenced DFG on 14 April 2021. This report will recap on recent developments and 
update on plans for continual improvement and service integration, including with the 
LCES. 
 
Lincolnshire is now a strategic partner with the Centre for Ageing Better (AB) and has 
developed a joint 'Homes for Independence' project and team. AB recently 
commissioned and published a national Good Home Inquiry – one of the main 
recommendations of which, aimed at local government, is to establish a Good Homes 
Agency in each area. LCC has committed to work with AB, the Local Government 
Association (LGA) and district councils to pilot and develop potential models for this to 
be achieved. It is anticipated that occupational therapy services across LCC, the NHS, 
DFG and the LCES, along with several other LCC and district council services such as 
Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue's Safe and Well Checks and Lincs 4 Warmer Homes 
(L4WH), and relevant commissioned services, will all come under the umbrella model. 
 

 

Actions Required: 

That progress to date is noted and that the Committee supports the in principle plans 
for future alignment of occupational therapy, DFG and LCES services through a Good 
Homes Agency. 

 

 
 
1. Background 
 
1.1 Adult Occupational Therapy 
 
The report to Scrutiny Committee on 14 April 2021 provided details of the two-year 
service transformation programme and outlined some of the achievements.   
 
The LCC Adult Occupational Therapy service has been re-structured and strengthened to 
improve collaborative work with the district councils through: 

 Area teams coterminous with district boundaries with scope for co-location with 
district council housing teams. 

 Additional resource into occupational therapy teams to manage workloads. 

 Collective ambition to reduce underspends whilst ensuring all money allocated to 
Lincolnshire remains in Lincolnshire and is used for the benefit of its residents. 

 DFGs recorded on Mosaic allowing outcomes to be better monitored. 
 
There are a range of occupational therapy providers that work with adults across the 
system in different settings to maximise independence, reduce the burden on carers and 
mitigate risks. The Adult Care Occupational Therapy service is currently the only service 
which has a direct interface with district councils over housing and adaptations. 
Lincolnshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust (LPFT) provide occupational therapists as 
part of Lincolnshire mental health and learning disability teams who will support housing 

Page 30

https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=550&MId=5708&Ver=4


 
 

as a wider determinant of the person’s treatment plans; however cross organisational 
referrals will be made to LCC for DFG consideration. 
 
The mandatory DFG legislation sets out that ‘social services’ must be consulted on the 
allocation of a DFG, however there are a range of alternative options possible under the 
Regulatory Reform (Housing Assistance) (England and Wales) Order 2002 (RRO) which 
would enable wider system access to housing adaptations. This includes examples such as 
providing stairlifts through the LCES or making greater use of discretionary funding 
options. 
 
Occupational Therapy leads from LCC, United Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS Trust (ULHT), 
Lincolnshire NHS Community Health Service (LCHS) and elements of primary care are 
working together to explore ways to deliver a more Lincolnshire occupational therapy 
service with reduced transfers of care between occupational therapy services. LCC is 
exploring the potential to create a single occupational therapy service. This ultimately 
needs to deal with increasing volumes of work and a broader remit to achieve a person-
centred approach to meet all aspects of housing need, whilst at the same time further 
improving efficiency, performance, and speed of response.  
 
Although discussions are at an early stage, this includes a focus on proactive care within 
communities to ensure individuals’ independence is maintained and prevented from 
escalation, but also working with hospital services to improve flow. There is a strategic 
intention to embrace a ‘pull’ model in which community therapy services are proactive in 
working with people in hospital and facilitating a transfer to the community, rather than 
wards ‘pushing’ individuals in a discharge model.  
 
A genuine discharge to an assessment model is the preference, whereby decisions around 
care and support are taken after the person has returned home and an assessment 
completed in the person’s familiar surroundings.  This is greater than OT alone and will 
require close collaboration with wider therapy and nursing services, including close 
working with reablement services and housing providers to ensure an expedited response 
to emerging needs. It is envisaged that these changes will streamline the provision of 
housing options such as DFG and widen access. 
 
1.2 Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) 
 
DFGs are mandatory grants, a statutory duty on district councils to administer. During the 
past few years much has improved in Lincolnshire across the system with a more 
collective countywide approach driven by the requirements of the BCF. This has seen 
relationships improve and trust develop. All parties have invested time, energy, and staff 
resources with a commitment to develop an improved process for the benefit of the 
customer to reduce time scales, avoid duplication and work in a more consistent manner 
across Lincolnshire.  
 
 
 

Page 31



 
 

Whilst all this work has created positive changes and outcomes there is still a huge 
opportunity to further develop and create a Lincolnshire approach to supporting people 
through improving their home. The budget for DFGs comes to LCC through the BCF and is 
passed to district councils; and has increased significantly over recent years. The total 
amount available in 2019/20 was £9.2million, including: 

 2019/20 DFG funds allocated to district councils through the BCF; passed to them 
in full. 

 Previous years' DFG underspends held in district council reserves and ring-fenced 
for DFG related work. 

 Additional in-year funds allocated direct to district councils. 
 
£4.3million of this £9.2million was spent on mandatory DFGs. The budget for the current 
2021/22 year is just under £7.0million; and so, there is scope to spend anticipated surplus 
funds on broader support and assistance for people with disabilities and care needs. 
 
Summary of activity for adults with disabilities 

Disabled Facilities Grants 

 2018/19 2019/20 

Number of grants completed 644 632 

Total DFG spend £4,325,644 £4,336,385 

Number of grants approved 160 269 

Value of DFGs approved £1,232,405 £1,327,356 

 
Legislation governing DFG is outdated having not changed much in the last 30 years. The 
Chronically Sick and Disabled Persons Act 1970 that used to set out LCC's role in delivering 
adaptations was superseded by the Care Act 2014 but neither it nor the inclusion of the 
DFG budget in the BCF has led to proper integration of DFG as part of the wider health and 
care system. 
 
In addition, there were 893 occupational therapy recommendations for DFG made to 
district councils in 2018/19. This, taken with the above figures for grants completed and 
approved, suggest that around 100 did not progress. There will be many more 
assessments carried out that did not lead to a recommendation for DFG being made. This 
is anecdotal but there is a belief that in a proportion of these cases no adaptations will 
have been completed. There is, therefore, scope to explore this further and determine 
whether providing greater support in the absence of a DFG application would have had a 
successful outcome. 
 
There is an opportunity to do things differently through district councils using their 
Regulatory Reform Order (RRO) powers. The RRO provides a general power to introduce 
policies for assisting individuals with renewals, repairs and adaptations in their homes 
through grants or loans. It can provide authorities a vehicle for: 
 

 Funding essential repairs to reduce injury and accidents in the home. 

 Ensuring homes are adequately heated. 

 Expanding the scope of adaptations available under the DFG legislation. 

Page 32



 
 

 Helping people relocate to alternative accommodation if their current home is not 
able to meet their needs. 

 
The RRO is currently being used to supplement and, in a few cases, amend DFG; but in the 
main is supporting repairs and improvements to the homes of people with disabilities and 
other health and care needs. Discretionary policies have been adopted by district councils 
and development of a common housing assistance policy is underway. This is, however, 
curtailed in that it is to be delivered with DFG budget insofar as this is not utilised on 
mandatory DFG provision. Whilst there is a clear focus on mandatory spend, there is an 
increasing willingness to deliver more works which are at local discretion, especially to 
support the wider health and care sector e.g., fast-track to support hospital discharge. 
 
Using Mosaic to record DFGs on and pass details backwards and forwards between LCC 
and district councils has improved communications, but it is not being used as a complete 
case management system. Partners aspire to a streamlined process where these hand offs 
are not evident to the applicant. There are opportunities for different interactions with 
customers at different points in the process. It is suggested that more effort goes in to the 
'initial enquiry' stage to ensure adaptation of the existing home is the right and preferred 
option for them and their household. Alternatives such as all potential DFG applicants 
being allocated a caseworker to access holistic housing advice could be appropriate. 
 
Moving to pooled budget arrangements and agreeing different approaches to using 
available funds through the Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) offers significant 
opportunity for innovation. Discussion at the HHCDG has increasingly been about 'the 
system' and the inter-dependencies between services. There is an increasing awareness of 
the opportunities of personalisation and personal budgets, and the need to integrate DFG 
and equipment services to support individuals more effectively. This is subject to 
agreement by LCC, Lincolnshire NHS Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG), and district 
councils through robust governance arrangements; giving assurance that the statutory 
duty to administer mandatory DFG and LCES provision could continue to be met.  
  
1.3 Lincolnshire Community Equipment Service 
 
The LCES is a statutory loan service to help meet the health and social care needs of 
people of all ages, including children, who have long term conditions and disabilities. It is a 
jointly commissioned service between LCC and the Lincolnshire CCG with a Section 75 
agreement and the Partnership Board governing the joint work. The community 
equipment is supplied, maintained, collected, recycled, and stored by the service provider, 
currently Nottingham Rehab Limited (trading as NRS Healthcare).   
 
The current contract has been in place since 01 April 2016. The initial five years of the 
contract is due to end on 31 March 2021.  LCC and the Partnership Board have, however, 
agreed to a further two-year extension of the service up until a maximum of 31 March 
2023. The LCES is key to enable people to retain independence in their own homes with 
the use of community equipment and is a proven service to help facilitate discharge from 
hospital and to avoid admission to hospital and more complex care packages i.e., home 
care or placement at a care home. The current budget of £5.8million is set based on the 

Page 33



 
 

historic total equipment spend by various partners prescribing equipment to Lincolnshire 
residents; then split based on agreed allocations set out in the current Section 75 
document in which LCC contributes 46% of the total fund and the CCG contributes 
54%. The current calculation takes into consideration what equipment is prescribed rather 
than who prescribed the equipment.  
 
The review and re-commissioning of this service is a key action in achieving LCC's 
Corporate Plan.  The review programme and wider engagement also contributed towards 
the delivery of the Lincolnshire Homes for Independence blueprint delivery plan, overseen 
by the HHCDG and the HWB.  Also, as the programme commenced and wider engagement 
was undertaken, beneficial new initiatives were considered by the LCES Programme 
Project Board.  These included: 
 

 Inclusion of the DFG equipment, i.e., stairlifts and modular ramps, forming part of 
the scope of the ICES, 

 Options appraisal conducted regarding integration of wheelchair service in the 
future contract, 

 Implementation of an Active Recall Call Team to stimulate collections, and 

 Potential for digital assistive technologies and Technically Enabled Care (TEC) 
solutions in terms of the wider Tele-Care review of services. 

 
The LCES covers a substantial geographical area and a population of 755,833. It served 
57,266 patients and customers during 2020/21 and completed 62,687 orders: an increase 
from 58,685 the year before. Additionally, the service was able to adapt very quickly and 
has been instrumental in LCC's response to the Covid-19 pandemic, managing logistical 
support for personal protective equipment (PPE) and Lateral Flow Test (LFT) kits more 
recently, to date the LCES service has delivered 3,012,959 PPE items since April 2020. 
Performance of the service in the first two quarter of this financial year 

Lincolnshire Community Equipment Service 

  Target 

Target 
Range 

Tolerance Quarter 1 Quarter 2 

Emergency Deliveries completed on time 98.00% 97.00% 100.00% 99.67% 

Urgent Deliveries completed on time 98.00% 97.00% 97.67% 99.33% 

Premium Deliveries completed on time 96.00% 97.00% 99.33% 99.00% 

Standard Deliveries completed on time 96.00% 95.00% 99.00% 98.67% 

Emergency Collections completed on time 98.00% 95.00% 100.00% 100.00% 

Urgent Collections completed on time 98.00% 97.00% 100.00% 100.00% 

Standard Collections completed on time 98.00% 97.00% 100.00% 100.00% 

Emergency Repairs completed on time 98.00% 97.00% 100.00% 100.00% 

Urgent Repairs completed on time 98.00% 97.00% 100.00% 100.00% 

Special equipment available in the depot 
which is delivered within 5 working days of 
receipt 98.00% 97.00% 99.00% 99.33% 

Recycling Levels 88.00% 86.00% 90.73% 89.27% 

Joint visits completed 96.00% 94.00% 100.00% 100.00% 

Page 34



 
 

Standard Installation within 7 working days 96.00% 94.00% 100.00% 100.00% 

Non-Standard Installations within 30 working 
days 96.00% 94.00% 100.00% 100.00% 

Removal within 15 working days 96.00% 94.00% 100.00% 100.00% 

 
 
1.4 One Stop Shop for Equipment, Aids and Adaptations 
 
One of the activities under LCC's Corporate Plan is to develop a One Stop Shop for 
Equipment, Aids and Adaptations. In other words, to create a single point of access to 
occupational therapy, DFG and the ICES services outlined in this report. 
 
Public Health has recruited a Project Officer on a two-year fixed-term contract from 18 
October 2021. The Project Officer will work closely with colleagues across Adult Care and 
Community Wellbeing, Children's Services and with district councils, the NHS and the 
Centre for Ageing Better to complete the activities leading to a One Stop Shop. The 
development of the One Stop Shop is a component of a bigger, more holistic Good Home 
Agency and the Project Officer's role will be broader to test and lead the development of a 
model. 
 
It is already accepted that the Care Act 2014 promotes a person-centred approach with 
housing as an integral 'health related service' as the following extract shows: 
 
"Lincolnshire services built around an individual’s needs are often best delivered through 
the home. The suitability of living accommodation is a core component of an individual’s 
wellbeing and when developing Lincolnshire services, local authorities should consider the 
central role of housing within integration, with associated formal arrangements with 
housing and other partner organisations.” 
[Care Act Guidance 4.90] 
 
It is, therefore, crucial that occupational therapy services achieve their full potential and 
DFG is embedded as part of the wider health and care service to achieve LCC's ambition. 
This could mean more assessment posts within the council and / or assurances that 
assessments made by other health and care professionals can be accepted and acted upon 
through ‘trusted assessor’ arrangements. 
 
Creation of a new pathway to consider equipment, adaptations, and digital technology 
needs, as part of a wider assessment of requirements to facilitate independent living, 
presents opportunities for transformation. This will require other organisations (e.g., 
district councils) to do things differently e.g., being able to order from the LCES service. 
This would also incorporate elements of LCC’s Adult Care Digital Roadmap that includes 
trialling solutions to support independent living without the need for higher cost aids and 
adaptations; particularly where mainstream technologies or products can be utilised. 
 
 
 
 

Page 35



 
 

The principles and opportunities to be considered include: 

 A single point of access for all instances of 'unsuitable' homes. 

 Provision of comprehensive 'housing needs' advice to determine if remaining in 
the home is the most appropriate or an alternative home for independence would 
be better. 

 Making best use of the existing adapted and accessible housing stock through 
developing an adapted homes register(s) and closer working with housing 
registered providers. 

 Closer alignment with commissioned services e.g., Wellbeing Service, Carers 
Service and hospital in-reach services providing a broader range of support (e.g., 
social connections, energy costs (tariffs)) with potential for this to incorporate new 
home improvement and energy efficiency agencies. 

 Considering complicated cases with 'multiple' needs and high-cost adaptations 
through a ‘vulnerable adult panel’ approach to agree the most appropriate course 
of action. 

 Making best use of equipment and digital technology solutions; incorporating a 
wider offer in a re-commissioned LCES and Tele-Care contracts.  

 Ensuring residents are empowered to do as much as they can for themselves and 
are signposted for self-help, wherever possible. 

 
These principles would all come under the umbrella of a Good Home Agency. 
 
2. Conclusion 
 
We have a well-established platform through the HHCDG to develop to the next level 
which would see the development of a Good Home Agency, as a national pilot resulting 
from the national Good Home Inquiry. This could include pooling DFG and equipment 
budgets, giving a combined annual budget of around £12.8million, to support people 
better. 
 
Next Steps 
 
LCC's Corporate Plan activity brief for the One Stop Shop (which has been adapted here) 
sets out the key milestones for the next two years: 
 
1. Establish a Healthy and Accessible Homes Group as the 'lead' for this activity with 

terms of reference by 31 December 2021 (re-scheduled from 30 September 2021). 
2. District councils appoint a Strategic Lead – Healthy and Accessible Homes shared post 

to develop work programme by 31 January 2022 (in post by 31 March 2022 at the 
latest). 

3. Complete the AB work programme on housing aids and equipment: 
a. Complete stakeholder analysis and develop an engagement plan by mid-

December 2021. 
b. Develop a 3-month project plan – to then handover to the Project Officer in 

January 2022. 
c. Commence pilot implementation from 01 January 2022. 
d. Review and assessment to start 01 October 2022. 

Page 36



 
 

e. Joint agreement between partners on how to deliver equipment, aids, and 
adaptations by 31 December 2022. 

f. New service(s) mobilise from 01 April 2023. 
4. Complete evaluation of remote monitoring projects and digital solution pilots to 

inform commissioning review of Tele-Care service by 31 December 2021. 
5. Complete commissioning review of Tele-Care service by 30 June 2022. 
6. Complete commissioning review of LCES by 30 June 2022.  
7. Complete commissioning review of Wellbeing Service by 31 March 2023. It is 

anticipated that there will be a close alignment of the Good Home Agency with 
Wellbeing Lincs (the current Wellbeing Service provider being a consortium of the 
district councils).   

 
3. Consultation 
 
The Centre for Ageing Better commissioned a service design firm, Live|Work to map 
existing services in Lincolnshire and, in terms of consultation, to undertake several 
stakeholder workshops and user interviews and focus groups to understand what people 
need and want; and what frustrates them about accessing services now. This consultation 
will inform the work programme to achieve integration of DFG and the LCES into the wider 
health and care system. Further consultation and stakeholder engagement will be carried 
out throughout.   
 
a)  Risks and Impact Analysis 

No Risk and Impact Analysis has been undertaken. 

 
4. Background Papers 
 
No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 
in the preparation of this report. 
 
 

This report was written by Sean Johnson, who can be contacted on 07917707186 or 
sean.johnson@lincolnshire.gov.uk; with contributions from Gareth Everton and Prashant 

Agrawal. 

Page 37

mailto:sean.johnson@lincolnshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



       
 

Open Report on behalf of Glen Garrod,  
Executive Director - Adult Care and Community Wellbeing 

 

Report to: Adults and Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 01 December 2021 

Subject: Lincolnshire Adults Safeguarding Board - Update Report  

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

To provide members with an overview of the role and work of the Lincolnshire Adults 
Safeguarding Board including an update in relation to the Team Around the Adult 
project. 

 
 

Actions Required: 

The Committee are invited to: 

1) To note the contents of the report;  
2) To promote the work of the Lincolnshire Safeguarding Adults Board  

 

 
1. Background 
 
The Lincolnshire Safeguarding Adults Board (LSAB) is a statutory partnership that has 3 
core functions as defined in the Care Act (2014) section 14.136. 
 
a. It must publish a strategic plan for each financial year that sets how it will meet its 

main objective and what the members will do to achieve this.  

b. It must publish an annual report detailing what the Safeguarding Adults Board 
(SAB) has done during the year to achieve its main objective and implement its 
strategic plan, and what each member has done to implement the strategy as well 
as detailing the findings of any safeguarding adult’s reviews and subsequent action. 

c. It must conduct any safeguarding adults review in accordance with Section 44 of the 
Act. 

 
The Act requires that the SABs should ensure that adult safeguarding arrangements across 
its locality are coordinated and that the arrangements are effective across partner 
agencies. 
 

Page 39

Agenda Item 7



It requires the LSAB to develop and actively promote a culture with its members, partners 
and the local community that recognises the values and principles contained in ‘Making 
Safeguarding Personal’ (MSP). It should also concern itself with a range of issues which can 
contribute to the wellbeing of its community and to the prevention of abuse and neglect, 
such as: 

 

 Safety of people who use services in local health settings, including mental health.  

 Safety of adults with care and support needs living in the community, in social housing 
and in care homes.  

 Effective interventions with adults who self-neglect, for whatever reason.  

 Quality of local care and support services.  

 Effectiveness of prisons in safeguarding offenders.  

 Making connections between adult safeguarding and domestic abuse.  
 

LSAB is a partnership body and has over 20 partner agencies as members. The Board sets 
direction and priorities, develops partnership working and holds partner agencies to 
account for the effective delivery of safeguarding arrangements. 
 
The core partners are Lincolnshire County Council, the Clinical Commissioning Group in 
Lincolnshire and Lincolnshire Police. 
 
The LSAB structure includes: 
 

 An Executive Group whose membership is primarily the three core partner -  the 
lead Council member, three main NHS providers and a district council 
representative.  

 A Partnership Board made up of a wider group of agencies including the voluntary 
sector, prisons, Lincoln University, Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) plus 
others. 

 A number of sub-groups to reflect the Board’s strategic priorities of Prevention and 
Early Intervention, Quality and Assurance, User Engagement and Review and 
Learning.  

 
Cross Board Collaboration 
 
LSAB has a key role in collaborating with other Lincolnshire strategic boards and has 
worked closely with the Safer Lincolnshire Partnership, Lincolnshire Safeguarding 
Children’s Partnership and the new Domestic Advisory Board to form a collaboration in 
relation to a number of work streams and the development of a strategic needs 
assessment. 
 
Collaborative work with the Board’s resources has so far focused upon developing a 
shared approach to multi-agency training, audit work and communications. Further work 
is being progressed around the possibility of bringing together the review processes in 

Page 40



relation to serious case reviews, adult safeguarding reviews and domestic homicide 
reviews. 
 
The strategic assessment across the four boards has provided an excellent evidence base 
for future priorities that can be delivered by a more joined up approach and 
recommendations from the assessment focus upon developing a shared prevention 
strategy, an analytical capability and greater information and data sharing. 
 

Assurance role 

 

Assuring the effectiveness of safeguarding arrangements across partner agencies is a key 
role for the Board. Over recent years the Board has developed an assurance framework 
which is similar to the Children’s Section 11 audit and is required to be completed by 
partner agencies every three years. 
 
To supplement this process LSAB have also introduced an annual assurance event at both 
Executive and Partnership levels which has taken place this autumn.  
 
The focus of the assurance events predominantly related to the partners’ experiences, 
challenges and learning during the main Covid-19 response. There were clear similarities 
between organisations with a focus upon complexity and volume of cases experienced, 
concerns around quality of care in relation to self-neglect and recognition of the general 
strain on the system and staff. New legislation relating to Liberty Protection Safeguards 
which will replace the existing Deprivation of Liberties processes, along with a review of 
the Mental Health Act and a change for Health and Social Care into a new Integrated Care 
System also featured in the discussion for future considerations by the Board in relation to 
their impact upon safeguarding. 
 
Learning 
 
A key aspect of the commissioning of Safeguarding Adults Reviews is to ensure that any 
recommendations made are translated into action and a tangible difference made in 
respect of how individuals experience the service partners provide. 
 
Following a national review of Safeguarding Adults Reviews, LSAB compared its own 
learning and findings against the national picture. As a result of which, the Board delivered 
the first of a series of short virtual conferences for front-line practitioners in October. The 
key themes explored being professionally curious, information sharing and complex cases. 
The Board were assisted in its delivery by the Team Around the Adult Co-ordinators who 
provided excellent examples of complex case management and innovative solutions. 
 
Recent guidance developed and in the process of being published on the LSAB website has 
also included “Professional Curiosity”, “Making Safeguarding Personal” and “Self-Neglect”. 
 

 

 

Page 41



Team Around the Adult 

Team Around the Adult (TAA) is a pilot initiative born out of a Serious Adult Review (SAR) 
called TH19. The SAR considered the abuse and neglect relating to a number of adults with 
complex needs including mental illness, homelessness and/ or drug and alcohol addiction. 
Whilst some of these people were known to agencies there was a theme of non-
engagement and or falling through gaps in services. 

The TAA initiative builds upon the Vulnerable Adult Panels (VAPs) operated by District 
Councils and offers the opportunity for VAPs to ask for support from the TAA Co-
ordinators to convene strategy meetings to help move on complex cases that have got 
stuck. The strategy meetings help to identify someone who is best placed to gain the trust 
and engagement of the person at risk and if necessary bring organisations together to help 
ensure there are no blockages to accessing or delivering support. 

The Team Around the Adult initiative is a key part of the Lincolnshire's Safeguarding Adult 
Board (LSAB) Prevention Strategy and is available to people who do not meet the criteria 
for an Adult Safeguarding Section 42 enquiry.  

The initiative has had significant success in helping support people who were previously 
difficult to engage with. Many of those who are assisted by the project have multiple and 
complex needs and some innovative approaches have been developed between the co-
ordinators and front-line practitioners. 

The team also run a variety of Practice Forums which explore a number of topics of interest 
for staff from the multi-agency partnerships, and in particular staff working in the District 
Councils, who work with vulnerable adults that have multiple disadvantages. 

A survey is also underway to establish best practice and “what works” in terms of engagement 
in complex cases and also to map out service provision and accessibility. 

The initiative is to be evaluated before the end of the financial year and it is hoped that with 
the successful impact of this project, it could be extended further to include more individuals.

 
2. Conclusion 
 
The paper outlines the role and function of the Safeguarding Adults Board and updates 
members on its recent activities. The Board continues to develop its assurance role, 
supporting partner agencies to deliver effective safeguarding and aims to adopt a 
preventative approach in relation to early intervention in respect of Team around the 
Adult. 
 
3. Consultation 
 

 
 

 

 

a)  Risks and Impact Analysis 

None 
 

 

Page 42



4. Background Papers 
 
The following background papers as defined in the Local Government Act 1972 were relied 
upon in the writing of this report. 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Care Act 2014 www.gov.uk 

 
 

This report was written by Heather Roach, who can be contacted on 07815741065 or 
heather.roach@lincolnshire.gov.uk. 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



       
 

Open Report on behalf of Glen Garrod 
Executive Director - Adult Care and Community Wellbeing 

 

Report to: Adults and Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 01 December 2021 

Subject: 
Service Level Performance against the Corporate Performance 
Framework – Quarter 2  

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

This report summarises the Adults and Community Wellbeing Service Level 
Performance for Quarter 2.  This report will only summarise the measures that are 
above or below the target range. 

 

 

Actions Required: 

To note performance of the measures that are above or below the target range. 
 

 
1.  Background 
 
This report will summarise the performance of the Tier 2 Service Level Performance 
measures for Adults and Community Wellbeing.  
 
There are 18 measures in Tier 2 that should be reported in Quarter 2. 
 
In Quarter 2: 

 3 measures exceeded their target 

 10 measures achieved their targets 

 4 measures did not achieve their target and 

 1 measure is not reported due to definition change 
 
There is an explanation below as to why these have either exceeded or not achieved the 
targets or are not being reported in Quarter 2. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 45

Agenda Item 8



Exceeded in Quarter 2: 
 
Percentage of people aged 40 to 74 offered and received an NHS health check (PI33) 
 
Numerator:  69,239 
Denominator: 113,532 
 
In Lincolnshire during the period Quarter 1 2017/18 - Quarter 1 2021/22, the overall 
percentage of people taking up an NHS Health Check invite was 61.0%.  Due to the 
measure being over a 5-year period, the impact of Covid-19 on the NHS Health Check 
programme has yet to be seen in this performance indicator.  Whilst NHS Health Checks 
were paused during the Covid pandemic, just over half of general practices are now 
delivering some NHS Health Checks to their patients, although further disruption is likely 
to due to a shortage of bottles being available for blood tests.  From October 2021, the 
payment to general practices will change back to actual NHS Health Check activity rather 
than historic pre-Covid activity.  In March 2021, Lincolnshire County Council (LCC) 
concluded a procurement exercise to secure a countywide NHS Health Check Support 
Service.  The successful provider was TCR Nottingham Ltd which will provide software and 
related technical support to Lincolnshire General Practices delivering NHS Health Checks 
(from 1 July 2021).  The service was previously provided by Health Intelligence, which 
ended on 30 June 2021. The contract with TCR will run for an initial period of 21 months 
with the option to extend for a further period or periods of up to 60 months.    
 
Permanent admissions to residential and nursing care homes aged 65+ (PI60) 
 
Number:  367 
 
Admissions for 65+ into a residential and nursing section has continued to reduce resulting 
in performance being exceeded for 21/22. In part this is due to the continued work of the 
teams to help clients stay in their own homes longer if that is the best option. 
 
Requests for support for new clients, where the outcome was no support or support of a 
lower level (PI122) 
 
Numerator:   11,111 
Denominator:11,450 
 
Contacts leading to no support/low level support has exceeded target this quarter, in part 
this is due to the continue good work from the teams to find a non-service solution to 
contacts.  However, the high level will be partially due to some contacts that lead to an 
assessment still being on-going and on-going financial assessments. The change in how 
referrals are made into adult social care means that re-referrals occur until the service has 
capacity to take. 
 
 
 
 

Page 46



Not Achieved in Quarter 2: 
 
Carers supported in the last 12 months (PI59) 
 
Numerator: 11,412 
Denominator: 7.6 
 
1,502 carers per 100,000 population were supported over the previous 12 months. 
 
Changes to the Adult Care Client Assessment form have led to a reduction in the number 
of carers identified as part of a client assessment. The addition of a question asking if the 
carer feels that their needs were addressed as part of the assessment allows us to better 
identify where carers were present and consulted. The previous method was potentially 
over-counting as all carers identified as part of the client assessment were counted. This 
has resulted in 36% (1,048) fewer Joint Assessments being counted towards this measure. 
 
2,013 Young Carers, recorded by Children’s Services are included in the total for Quarter 2. 
Note that this is fewer than recorded in Quarter 1 as it appears that some duplicates were 
included in the count. 
 
People supported to successfully quit smoking (PI111) 
 
Numerator:   612 
Denominator: 995 
 
One You Lincolnshire (OYL) continues to grow and deliver a smoking cessation service that 
is effective and efficient, and whilst it is reported that the quarterly target was not 
achieved, it is important to recognise that OYL have adapted to deliver most of the 
quitters with minimal support from subcontractors (pharmacies, GPs and practice nurses) 
who have been required to divert to covid-related activity and vaccination programmes. 
 
During Q1 GPs and Pharmacies achieved 164 set quits and 62 four week quits, a success 
rate of 38%.  This indicates that Primary care is not yet delivering to pre-covid levels and 
although the original offer from OYL was that subcontractors would deliver 50% of the 
target.  Subcontractors are underperforming and OYL are compensating by making up this 
shortfall in house. OYL is working to re-engage with the GPs and Pharmacies to increase 
the number of subcontractors based quits as covid-related work settles." 
 
Carers who have received a review of their needs (PI121) 
 
Numerator:   693 
Denominator:  918 
 
Of the 918 Carers who received a Direct Payment during the last 12 months, 693 (75.5%) 
received a review of their needs in the same period. 
 

Page 47



648 (93.5%) of these reviews were undertaken by the Carers Service. 45 (6.5%) were 
undertaken by Adult Care. Changes to the informal care section of the Adult Care Review 
forms are underway to improve this outcome. 
 
Adult Safeguarding concerns that lead to a Safeguarding enquiry (PI130) 
 
Numerator:  546 
Denominator:  2,255 
 
It is important partners train their front-line teams to understand the criteria for an Adult 
Safeguarding Concern and Enquiry. This indicator is a proxy measure of this 
understanding. Given the large percentage of concerns that to do not progress to an 
enquiry work is in train to review the referral process and to increase stakeholder 
understanding of care act criteria. 
 
Not reported due to definition change: 
 
Adults aged 18-64 living independently (PI 117) 
 
This measure cannot be reported this period due to a definition change that is required.  It 
is no longer possible to report on the Care Programme Approach (CPA) cohort because 
this no longer exists.  We are working with our partners at Lincolnshire Partnership 
Foundation Trust (LPFT) to redefine this measure and it is hoped this can be reported 
again from Quarter 3. 
 
2. Conclusion 
 
The Adults and Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee is requested to consider and 
comment on the report. 
 
3. Consultation 
 
a)  Risks and Impact Analysis 

None required 

4. Appendices 
 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Performance Measure Summary 

 
5. Background Papers 
 
No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 
in the preparation of this report. 
 

This report was written by Caroline Jackson, who can be contacted on 07920 214017 or 
Caroline.Jackson@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

Page 48

mailto:Caroline.Jackson@lincolnshire.gov.uk


The number of Lincolnshire County Council funded/part funded permanent admissions of older people, 

aged 65+, to residential and nursing care during the year.

This is a Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework (ASCOF) 2a part 2 and reported in the Better Care 

Fund (BCF).

A smaller number of people permanently admitted to residential and nursing homes indicates a better 

performance. Admissions into residential and nursing placements tend to increase in the winter period 

due to illness and increased care being required.

This measure is particularly sensitive to time lags in data recording on the system because of the 

complex care home placement process.  As such the reported figures are as recorded at the time of the 

data extract.

60

Permanent admissions to residential and nursing care homes aged 

65+

Achieved

367
People

Cumulative Actual as at 

September 2021

475
People

Cumulative Target for 

September 2021

About the latest performance

Admissions for 65+ into an residential and nursing section has continued to reduce resulting in 

performance being exceeded for 21/22.  In part this is due to the continued work of the teams to help 

clients stay in their own homes longer if that is the best option.

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Cumulative total 121 367

Target 238 475

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

500

People 

Permanent admissions to residential and 
nursing care homes aged 65+ 

Page 49



Further details

Lincolnshire County Council provides performance reports to the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 

and Accountancy (CIPFA) which facilitates benchmarking services to enable Adult Social Care 

performance to be monitored against other local authorities. We benchmark against other Local 

Authorities within our CIPFA Group of 16 authorities.

Due to the processing of national figures the benchmarked numbers for Lincolnshire may not exactly 

match our internally reported 2018-19 year-end figures.

About the target

Targets are based on trends and CIPFA group averages. For a definition of CIPFA please see About 

Benchmarking.

About the target range

This measure has a target range of +/- 5% based on tolerances used by Department of Health

About benchmarking

Page 50



40.9
%

Quarter 2 September 2021

36.0
%

Target for September 2021

Further details

Achieved

63

Adults who receive a direct payment

This measure reflects the proportion of people using services who receive a direct payment.

Numerator: Number of users receiving direct or part direct payments.

Denominator: Number of adults aged 18 or over accessing long term support on the last day of the 

period.

The percentage is calculated as follows: Numerator divided by the denominator multiplied by 100.

This measure is reported as a snapshot in time so for example Q2 is performance as at 30th 

September. 

A higher percentage of adults that receive a direct payment indicates a better performance.

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Percentage 39.1 40.9

Target 36 36

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

% 

Adults who receive a direct payment 

Page 51



About the target range

This measure has a target range of +/- 5 percentage points based on tolerances used by Department of 

Health

About benchmarking

Lincolnshire County Council provides performance reports to the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 

and Accountancy (CIPFA) which facilitates benchmarking services to enable Adult Social Care 

performance to be monitored against other local authorities. We benchmark against other Local 

Authorities within our CIPFA Group of 16 authorities.

Due to the processing of national figures the benchmarked numbers for Lincolnshire may not exactly 

match our internally reported 2018-19 year-end figures.

Targets are based on trends and CIPFA group averages. For a definition of CIPFA please see About 

Benchmarking. Based on our performance from 2019/20 we have set a revised target of 35% for the 

20/21 reporting year which now covers all service users.

About the target

Page 52



44.5
%

Cumulative Actual as at 

September 2021

45
%

Cumulative Target for 

September 2021

65

People in receipt of long term support who have been reviewed

Lincolnshire County Council has a statutory duty to assess people with an eligible need and once the 

person has a support plan there is a duty to reassess their needs annually. This measure ensures 

people currently in receipt of long term support or in a residential / nursing placement are reassessed 

annually.

Numerator: For adults in the denominator, those that have received an assessment or review of their 

needs in the year.

Denominator: Number of current service users receiving long term support in the community or in 

residential care for 12 months or more.

The percentage is calculated as follows: Numerator divided by the denominator multiplied by 100.

A higher percentage of people that have been reviewed indicates a better performance.

Achieved

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Percentage 23.1 44.5

Target 22.5 45

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

% 

People in receipt of long term support who 
have been reviewed 

Page 53



About the target range

This measure has a target range of +/- 5 percentage points based on tolerances used by Department of 

Health

About benchmarking

Benchmarking from the statutory SALT collection is possible at an aggregated level, that is for all 

clients supported by Adult Care for 12 months or more where a review has taken place.  However, it 

cannot be disaggregated by client category.  The figures provided are therefore an indication of general 

review performance for all ages and client groups.

The target is based on historical trends and is indicative of the expected direction of travel.

Further details

About the target

Page 54



97.0
%

Quarter 2 September 2021

93
%

Target for September 2021

About the latest performance

Contacts leading to no support/low level support has exceeded target this quarter, in part this is due to 

the continue good work from the teams to find a non-service solution to contacts.  However the high 

level will be partially due to some contacts that lead to an assessment still being on-going and also on-

going financial assessments. The change in how referrals are made in to adult social care means that 

re-refferals occur until the service has capacity to take.

Further details

Achieved

122

Requests for support for new clients, where the outcome was no 

support or support of a lower level

For all distinct requests for support from new clients aged 65 or over, the proportion where the outcome 

to the request was no support or support of a lower level.  New clients are defined as people who were 

not receiving long term funded support at the time of the request.  This is another demand management 

measure which monitors the number / proportion of people who approach the council and are 

signposted away from more intensive support. This measure will come directly from the Short and Long 

Term (SALT) requests table for people aged 65+ (STS001 table 2), and as such is underpinned by 

statutory guidance for recording and reporting. A higher percentage indicates a better performance.

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Percentage 97.0 97.0

Target 93 93

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

% 

Requests for support for new clients, where the 
outcome was no support or support of a lower level 

Page 55



Page 56



About the target range

A target range for this measure is set at +/- 2 percentage points - the tolerance level is lower than other 

measures because any more than a 2% adverse variance from the target would equate to several 

hundred extra people accessing intensive services.

About benchmarking

Benchmarking is available for all councils from the SALT return at the end of the summer each year and 

will be added when it becomes available.

Due to the processing of national figures the benchmarked numbers for Lincolnshire may not exactly 

match our internally reported 2018-19 year-end figures.

The target for this measure has been set to 93% which will maintain our current level of performance.

About the target

Page 57



95.8
%

Quarter 2 September 2021

95
%

Target for September 2021

Further details

Achieved

124

Completed episodes of Reablement

Reablement is an early intervention for vulnerable people to help them restore their independence, 

accessed before a formal assessment of need.  This is a key part of demand management for Adult 

Care and Community Wellbeing.  Positive outcomes for those people who use the service are a good 

measure of the effectiveness of the intervention and help to delay or reduce the need for longer term 

funded support from the authority.  The measure is the annual ASCOF 2D measure, so is underpinned 

by national guidance for recording and reporting. A higher percentage of completed episodes of 

Reablement indicates a better performance.

Numerator: Of the episodes in the denominator, the number where the outcome to Reablement was: 

"Ongoing Low Level Support" or "Short Term Support (Other)" or "No Services Provided - Universal 

Services/Signposted to Other Services" or "No Services Provided - No identified needs".

Denominator: Number of new clients who had completed an episode of short-term support to maximise 

independence (aka Reablement) in the period. (SALT STS002a)

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Percentage 99 95.8

Target 95 95

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

% 

Completed episodes of Reablement 

Page 58



About the target range

The target range for this measure is set at +/- 5 percentage points.

About benchmarking

Since this measure is an ASCOF measure, benchmarking is available each year in the Summer.

Due to the processing of national figures the benchmarked numbers for Lincolnshire may not exactly 

match our internally reported 2018-19 year-end figures.

The target for this measure has been set to 95%, based on CIPFA comparator averages. Our aim is to 

maintain this level of performance.

About the target

Page 59



1,502
Per 100,000 population

Quarter 2 September 2021

1,730
Per 100,000 population

Target for September 2021

About the latest performance

1502 carers per 100,000 population were supported over the previous 12 months.

Changes to the Adult Care Client Assessment form have led to a reduction in the number of carers 

identified as part of a client assessment. The addition of a question asking if the carer feels that their 

needs were addressed as part of the assessment allows us to better identify where carers were present 

and consulted. The previous method was potentially over-counting as all carers identified as part of the 

client assessment were counted. This has resulted in 36% (1048) fewer Joint Assesments being 

counted towards this measure.

2013 Young Carers, recorded by Childrens Services are included in the total for Quarter 2. Note that 

this is fewer than recorded in Quarter 1 as it appears that some duplicates were included in the count.

Not achieved

59

Carers supported in the last 12 months

This measure reflects the number of carers including young carers who have been supported in the last 

12 months and is expressed as a rate per 100,000 population.  A higher rate of carers supported 

indicates a better performance.

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Rate 1,614 1,502

Target 1,730 1,730

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Per 100,000 
population 

Carers supported in the last 12 months 

Page 60



About the target range

This measure has a target range of +/- 5% based on tolerances used by Department of Health

About benchmarking

Lincolnshire County Council provides performance reports to the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 

and Accountancy (CIPFA) which facilitates benchmarking services to enable Adult Social Care 

performance to be monitored against other local authorities. We benchmark against other Local 

Authorities within our CIPFA Group of 16 authorities.

Due to the processing of national figures the benchmarked numbers for Lincolnshire may not exactly 

match our internally reported 2018-19 year-end figures.

The target is based on historical trends and is indicative of the expected direction of travel.

Further details

About the target

Page 61



This measure monitors whether carers, who were eligible for support under the Care Act 2014 and who 

received funded direct support, received their annual review of needs as per their entitlement.  The 

measure is based on the carers table (LTS003) in the statutory Short and Long Term (SALT) collection, 

and is therefore underpinned by statutory guidance on recording and reporting. This measure is 

reported on a rolling 12 month basis e.g. Quarter 1 will show performance from July of the previous year 

to June of the current reporting year.

121

Carers who have received a review of their needs

76
%

Oct 2020 - Sept 2021

85
%

Target for Oct 2020 - Sept 2021

About the latest performance

Of the 918 Carers who received a Direct Payment during the last 12 months, 693 (75.5%) received a 

review of their needs in the same period.

648 (93.5%) of these reviews were undertaken by the Carers Service. 45 (6.5%) were undertaken by 

Adult Care. Changes to the informal care section of the Adult Care Review forms are underway to 

improve this outcome.

Jul 2019
- Jun
2020

Oct
2019 -
Sept
2020

Jan
2020 -
Dec
2020

Apr
2020 -

Mar
2021

Percentage 76 76

Target 85 85

0

25

50

75

100

% 

Carers who have received a review of their 
needs 

Page 62



Further details

About the target

The target for this measure has been set to 85%. The baseline for this new measure is 70% and so this 

is an aspirational target.

About the target range

The target range for this measure is set at +/- 5 percentage points.

About benchmarking

Page 63



Benchmarking is available for this measure from the SALT return on an annual basis.

Due to the processing of national figures the benchmarked numbers for Lincolnshire may not exactly 

match our internally reported 2018-19 year-end figures.

Page 64



Achieved

28

Safeguarding cases supported by an advocate

This measure identifies the proportion of concluded safeguarding referrals where the person at risk lacks capacity and support was provided by an advocate, family or 

friend.

An advocate can include:-

* An Independent Mental Health Advocate (IMHA);

* An Independent Mental Capacity Advocate (IMCA); or

* Non-statutory advocate, family member or friends.

Numerator: Number of concluded S42 ('Section 42' under the Care Act 2014) safeguarding enquiries in the denominator, where support was provided by an advocate, 

family or friend

Denominator: Number of concluded S42 ('Section 42' under the Care Act 2014) safeguarding enquiries in the period, where the person at risk lacks Mental Capacity

The percentage is calculated as follows: Numerator divided by the denominator multiplied by 100.

A higher percentage of cases supported by an advocate indicates a better performance.

100
%

Quarter 2 September 2021

100
%

Target for September 2021

About the latest performance

Performance against this measure is consistently strong and provides assurance that adults are receiving appropriate support to express their wishes and feelings and 

that statutory duties are met in accordance with the principles of making safeguarding personal.

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Percentage 100 100

Target 100 100

0

20

40

60

80

100

% 

Safeguarding cases supported by an 
advocate 

Page 65



Targets are based on trends and CIPFA group averages.

Further details

About the target

About the target range

This measure has a target range of +/-5 percentage points based on tolerances used by Department of Health.

About benchmarking

Benchmarking data is available for all councils in England in the summer following the annual submission of the Safeguarding Adults Collection (SAC). There was 

significant variation in the figures across the return.  This is most likely to be differences in practice and interpretation of the SAC return descriptions, and many councils 

were unable to complete the return.  For this reason, benchmarking must be treated with caution and is not necessarily a true reflection of comparative performance.  

As a result, the SAC return is being reviewed. Please note: The benchmarking data is extracted from NHS Digital and is shown as recorded.

Page 66



Achieved

116

Concluded safeguarding enquiries where the desired outcomes 

were achieved

This measure records the proportion of concluded enquiries ('Section 42' under the Care Act 2014 and 

other), where the desired outcomes were fully or partially achieved.  This measure is a key element of 

the Making Safeguarding Personal (MSP) national agenda, and monitors the effectiveness of 

Safeguarding interventions where desired outcomes were expressed and met.  The figures are taken 

directly from the Safeguarding Adults Collection, and is therefore underpinned by statutory guidance 

on recording and reporting.

Numerator: The number of concluded enquiries in the denominator where the person's desired 

outcome was fully or partially achieved.

Denominator: The total number of S42 safeguarding enquiries concluded in the period where the 

person or their representative was asked about and expressed their desired outcomes.

A higher percentage indicates a better performance.

99.3
%

Quarter 2 September 2021

95
%

Target for September 2021

About the latest performance

This target has been achieved and there has been an increase on the last quarter, evidencing that 

service users views and wishes are central to the safeguarding process.

Further details

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Percentage 93.7 99.3

Target 95 95

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

% 

Concluded outcomes where the desired 
outcomes were achieved 

 

Page 67



The target for this measure has been set to 95%. This comes from the CIPFA comparator group 

average for 2016/2017 based on incomplete voluntary submissions from Councils.

About the target

About the target range

This measure has a target range of +/-5 percentage points.

About benchmarking

Benchmarking data is available for all councils in England in the summer following the annual 

submission of the Safeguarding Adults Collection (SAC). There was significant variation in the figures 

across the return.  This is most likely to be differences in practice and interpretation of the SAC return 

descriptions, and many councils were unable to complete the return.  For this reason, benchmarking 

must be treated with caution and is not necessarily a true reflection of comparative performance.  As a 

result, the SAC return is being reviewed.

Page 68



130

Adult Safeguarding concerns that lead to a Safeguarding enquiry

The LCC Safeguarding Service want to encourage providers, partners and professionals to submit 

concerns to the Local Authority only where appropriate, and to ensure these concerns have already 

been managed and considered within the remit of their organisations and only escalated to the authority 

as necessary.  The Safeguarding Service would therefore expect a higher proportion of concerns 

progressing to an enquiry, with a corresponding reduction in concerns that do not warrant a full enquiry.

Not achieved

24.2
%

Cumulative Actual as at 

September 2021

46.5
%

Cumulative Target for 

September 2021

About the latest performance
It is important partners train their front line teams to understand the criteria for an Adult Safeguarding 

Concern and Enquiry. This indicator is a proxy measure of this understanding. Given the large % of 

concerns that to do not progress to an enquiry work is in train to review the referral process and to 

increase stakeholder understanding of care act criteria

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Percentage 25.0 24.2

Target 44.75 46.50

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

% 

Adult Safeguarding concerns that lead to a 
Safeguarding enquiry 

Page 69



The target is based on Lincolnshire trend data only, specifically 2018/19 performance year to date. The 

target is profiled to monitor an increase to 50% by the end of 2019/20, which means an increment of 

1.75 percentage points is applied quarterly. 

An increment of 5 percentage points for each subsequent year has been proposed, however this may 

need to be reviewed after a period of monitoring to determine whether this is realistic.

Further details

About the target

About the target range

This measure has a target range of +/-5 percentage points.

Page 70



About benchmarking

Benchmarking data is available for all councils in England in the summer following the annual 

submission of the Safeguarding Adults Collection (SAC). There was significant variation in the figures 

across the return.  This is most likely to be differences in practice and interpretation of the SAC return 

descriptions, and many councils were unable to complete the return.  For this reason, benchmarking 

must be treated with caution and is not necessarily a true reflection of comparative performance.  As a 

result, the SAC return is being reviewed.

Page 71



117

Adults aged 18-64 living independently

This measure has been adapted from an Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework national measure, 

ASCOF 1H, which identifies all mental health clients aged 18 to 69 in contact with secondary mental 

health services on the Care programme Approach (CPA) who are living independently.  The measure 

to be reported in the Council's performance framework is a subset of the national measure -  mental 

health clients aged 18 to 64 who are also receiving long term funded support from the authority.  These 

clients are supported by the Lincolnshire Partnership Foundation Trust (LPFT) under a S75 agreement 

whereby the authority delegates responsibility of service provision to the mental health trust.  This is a 

contract measure with the Trust and only these clients in the national measure can be influenced under 

the contract, making it more meaningful.  Since this is a local measure, there will no longer be a 3 

month time lag waiting for the official publication of the MHMDS (Mental Health Monthly Data Set) 

submission.

0
%

Quarter 2 September 2021

0
%

Target for September 2021

About the latest performance

This measure cannot be reported this period due to a definition change that is required. It is no longer 

possible to report on the CPA (Care Programme Approach) cohort because this no longer exists. We 

are working with our partners at LPFT to redefine this measure and it is hoped this can be reported 

again from Quarter 3.

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Percentage 0 0.0

Target 75 0

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

% 

Adults aged 18-64 
living independently 

 

Page 72



The target for this measure has been set at 75% - this is based on the care setting of Lincolnshire 

County Council funded clients, and the expectation that we should aim to maximise the independence 

and security of tenure for clients in the community.

Further details

About the target

About the target range

The target range for this measure is set at +/- 5 percentage points.

About benchmarking

The source data is submitted in the Mental Health Minimum Dataset on a quarterly basis, this is for all 

clients on the Care Programme Approach (CPA) in contact with secondary mental health services, not 

just those that are also receiving funded social care support.

Due to the processing of national figures the benchmarked numbers for Lincolnshire may not exactly 

match our internally reported 2018-19 year-end figures.

Page 73



The hospital teams discharge clients from hospitals and this new measures will look at all confirmed 

hospital discharges from acute sites for 18+ year old who were discharged in the previous quarter.  This 

measures how many were still at home 91 days after discharge, being at home is defined as people 

living in their own home in the community.

Achieved

89.6
%

Quarter 2 September 2021

85.0
%

Target for September 2021

People who remain at home 91 days after discharge

158

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Percentage 91.7 89.6

Target 85.00 85.00

75

80

85

90

95

100

% 

People who remain at home 91 days after 
discharge 

Page 74



About the target range

The target range for this measure is set at +/- 5 percentage points.

About benchmarking

This is an internal measure so cannot be bench marked nationally, however can be benchmarked 

internal for the same period last year.

The target for this measure has been set to 85%, based on the average of the past 6 quarters. Our aim 

is to give us an indicator of how well our commissioned services are at keeping people in the community 

after a hospital discharge.

Further details

About the target

Page 75



33.0
%

Quarter 1 June 2021

35
%

Target for June 2021

About the latest performance

"During this report period We Are With You have continued to adhere to national guidance by offering 

services remotely wherever possible; however plans are being developed to move the service into 

recovery in line with the national shift in Covid 19 restrictions. This will include re-opening general 

access to resource sites and making services safe to maintain the hands, face, space criteria moving 

forward.  

Following recent lockdowns, the service continues to see more complex and challenging alcohol clients 

entering treatment. They are more likely to drop out or require more intense residential services than 

generic clients which impacts on discharge rates as treatment takes longer and is less likely to be 

successful straight away. 

That said, there has been an 8% increase in successful discharges in this report period but this has 

been offset by a 15% increase in new alcohol clients. The increased number of clients means that the 

overall discharge rate remains at 33% which is slightly below target by 2%"

Achieved

31

Percentage of alcohol users that left specialist treatment 

successfully

This measure tracks the proportion of clients in treatment in the latest 12 months who successfully 

completed treatment. Data is reported with a 3 month (1 quarter) lag.

Leaving treatment for substance misuse in a structured, planned way, having met all of the goals set at 

the start and throughout the treatment journey (by the service user and their key worker) is known to 

increase the likelihood of an individual sustaining their recovery in the longer-term. The wider impacts 

on society are measured by alcohol influenced antisocial behaviour and violence in the 'Protecting the 

public' commissioning strategy.

The definition for this indicator has been revised in Quarter 2 of the 2018/19 reporting year to align more 

closely with the National Drug Treatment Monitoring System (NDTMS); this has no effect on previous 

figures reported for this measure.

Numerator: Number of successful completions (NDTMS)

Denominator: Number of completions (NDTMS)

A higher percentage of alcohol users that leave specialist treatment successfully indicates a better 

performance.

Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

Percentage 33.1 33

Target 35 35

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

% 

Percentage of alcohol users that left 
specialist treatment successfully 

Page 76



About the target range

The target range for this measure is between 33% and 37% (of people who leave specialist treatment in 

a planned and successful way). This is based on an expectation of fluctuation in performance across the 

year.

About benchmarking

No benchmarking data is available as this is a commissioned service producing local level  information 

to help tell the story of our services to members and the wider public.

A target of 35% has been set to reflect the wording and definition of this measure.

Further details

About the target

Page 77



33

Achieved

Percentage of people aged 40 to 74 offered and received an NHS 

health check

The NHS Health Check programme aims to help prevent heart disease, stroke, diabetes and kidney 

disease. Everyone between the ages of 40 and 74, who has not already been diagnosed with one of 

these conditions, will be invited (once every five years) to have a check to assess their risk of heart 

disease, stroke, kidney disease and diabetes and will be given support and advice to help them reduce 

or manage that risk. A high take up of NHS Health Checks are important to identify early signs of poor 

health leading to opportunities for early interventions.

This measure tracks the cumulative percentage of the eligible population aged 40-74 offered an NHS 

Health Check who received an NHS health check, which is measured on a 5 year rolling cycle. So for 

example performance reported at Q2 2018/2019 is cumulative from April 2014 to 30th September 

2018.

Numerator: Number of people aged 40-74 eligible for an NHS Health Check who received an NHS 

health check in the financial year (Integrated Performance Measures Monitoring Return (IPMR_1), 

NHS England)

Denominator: Number of people aged 40-74 eligible for an NHS Health Check who were offered an 

NHS Health Check in the financial year (IPMR_1, NHS England)

A higher percentage of people who were offered and received an NHS health check indicates a better 

performance.

61
% of people

Quarter 1 June 2021

55
% of people

Target for June 2021

About the latest performance

"In Lincolnshire during the period Quarter 1 2017/18 - Quarter 1 2021/22, the overall percentage of 

people taking up an NHS Health Check invite was 61.0%.  Due to the measure being over a 5 year 

period, the impact of Covid-19 on the NHS Health Check programme has yet to be seen in this 

performance indicator.  Whilst NHS Health Checks were paused during the covid pandemic, just over 

half of general practices are now delivering some NHS Health Checks to their patients, although further 

disruption is likely to due to a shortage of bottles being available for blood tests.  From October 2021, 

the payment to general practices will change back to actual NHS Health Check activity rather than 

historic pre-Covid activity.  In March 2021, LCC concluded a procurement exercise to secure a 

countywide NHS Health Check Support Service.  The successful provider was TCR Nottingham Ltd 

which will provide software and related technical support to Lincolnshire General Practices delivering 

NHS Health Checks (from 1st July 2021).  The service was previously provided by Health Intelligence, 

which ended on 30th June 2021. The contract with TCR will run for an initial period of 21 months with 

the option to extend for a further period or periods of up to 60 months.   

"

Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

Cumulative health check
total

62.9 61

Cumulative health check
target

55 55

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

% of people 

People aged 40 to 74 offered and received an 
NHS health check 

Page 78



The target has been set to ensure our programme exceeds the national average and is in line with 

regional performance.

Further details

About the target

About the target range

The target range for this measure is between 50% and 60%, this is based on an expectation of 

fluctuation in performance across the year

About benchmarking

Benchmarking currently available for this measure is comparator local authorities based on CIPFA 

nearest neighbours.  Numbers for those offered NHS health checks are subject to change on an 

annual basis. PHE methodology dictates that the number of people offered an NHS health check is 

applied to the full 5 year activity; as the numbers of people offered an NHS health check are lower than 

in previous years, to date Lincolnshire's performance is reported as over 100%.

Page 79



Achieved

110

Percentage of people supported to improve their outcomes following 

Wellbeing intervention

This measure identifies the percentage of people exiting the Wellbeing Service who demonstrated 

overall improvements across the outcomes they identified when entering the service. There are eight 

outcomes which the service focuses on and these are around supporting people to Manage Money, 

Participation, Social Contact, Physical Health, Mental Health and Wellbeing, Substance Misuse, 

Independence and Staying Safe. This measure is reported with a 1 quarter lag, therefore data from 

Quarter 1 will be published in Quarter 2 of the reporting year.

Numerator: The number of service users exiting the service with a higher Exit Score than Entry Score

Denominator: The total number of service users exiting the service.

A higher percentage of people supported to improve their outcomes indicates a better performance.

99
%

Quarter 1 June 2021

95
%

Target for June 2021

About the latest performance

The Wellbeing Service continued to provide services during Q1 2021-22 through a mixture of remote 

and in person visits. Referral volumes for the period have surpassed pre pandemic levels as restrictions 

continued to ease. The service has maintained its high performance in the self-determined outcome 

measure. During this period the Wellbeing Service has also maintained its support to the Covid 

Community Response Pathway concluding follow up wellbeing calls to a cohort of clinically extremely 

vulnerable residents.

Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

Percentage 99.0 99

Target 95 95

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

% 

Percentage of people supported to improve 
their outcomes following Wellbeing intervention  

Page 80



By reducing and delaying escalation of individuals into more costly care services, the Wellbeing Service 

enables users to maintain and enhance their independence for longer. This measure supports and 

monitors the effectiveness of the service and supports the Council to meet its Care Act responsibilities 

regarding prevention. The measure is aligned to a crucial Key Performance Indicator (KPI) in the newly 

commissioned Wellbeing Service.

Further details

About the target

About the target range

The target range for this measure has been set to +/-5 percentage points.

About benchmarking

No benchmarking data is available as this is a service commissioned specifically for Lincolnshire  and 

not part of a wider national programme.

Page 81



This measure identifies all those people who are supported to quit smoking by stop smoking and tobacco control services. These services raise 

awareness about the harms of tobacco and encourage and support smokers to quit smoking. People accessing the service are measured at 4 

weeks; this will be the time at which it is deemed whether they have successfully quit smoking, which aligns to Public Health England reporting 

standards. However, the service is still available to support clients after the 4 week measurement point. This measure is reported with a 1 quarter 

lag, therefore data from Quarter 1 will be published in Quarter 2 of the reporting year. A higher percentage of people supported to successfully 

quit smoking indicates a better performance.

111

People supported to successfully quit smoking

Not achieved

612
People

Cumulative Actual as at June 

2021

800
People

Cumulative Target for June 

2021

About the latest performance

"One You Lincolnshire continues to grow and deliver a smoking cessation service that is effective and efficient, and whilst it is reported that the 

quarterly target was not achieved, it is important to recognise that OYL have adapted to deliver most of the quitters with minimal support from 

subcontractors (pharmacies, GPs & practice nurses) who have been required to divert to covid-related activity & vaccination programmes.

During Q1 GPs and Pharmacies achieved 164 set quits and 62 four week quits, a success rate of 38%.  This indicates that Primary care is not yet 

delivering to pre-covid levels and although the original offer from OYL was that subcontractors would deliver 50% of the target.  Subcontractors 

are underperforming and OYL are compensating by making up this shortfall in house. OYL is working to re-engage with the GPs and Pharmacies 

to increase the number of subcontractors based quits as covid-related work settles."

Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3

People 2,250 612

Target 3,200 800

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

People 

People supported to successfully quit 
smoking 

Page 82



Further details

The latest published data by PHE for 2018/19 showed that the crude rate per 100,000 population aged 16+ for smokers that successfully quit at 4 

weeks in Lincolnshire was 2,056; this is similar to the regional rate (1,953 per 100,000 population aged 16+).  Of Lincolnshire's comparator areas 

Lancashire (3,323 per 100,000 population aged 16+) performed significantly better than its counterparts, whilst Worcestershire (115 per 100,000 

population aged 16+) and Staffordshire performed significantly worse (261 per 100,000 population aged 16+). Since 2015/16, it can be seen that 

the rate of successful quits has been reducing in Lincolnshire which is comparable to the national trend.

About the target

Smoking remains the biggest cause of premature mortality in England, accounting for around 80,000 deaths each year, approximately 1,200 to 

1,300 in Lincolnshire.  This measure supports a number of areas of the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) and aligns to the Public Health 

Outcomes Framework (PHOF) which measures a number of population level outcomes regarding smoking. Target is aligned to the Key 

Performance Indicator within the contract which is considerably higher than baseline performance level.

About the target range

The target range for this measure has been set to +/-5%.

About benchmarking

Page 83



99.0
%

Quarter 2 September 2021

90
%

Target for September 2021

About the latest performance

Framework continue to settle into providing this service which mobilised during the pandemic but 

continue to achieve positive outcomes. One of the outcomes that the HRS works towards is to help 

service users to maintain their accommodation for both services accommodation and floating support, 

which has been successfully achieved with 99%. Also during this quarter the HRS achieved a 98% 

achievement of  the overall outcomes KPI. It is important to remember that since October 2020 the 

Achieved

112

People supported to maintain their accommodation via Housing 

Related Support Service (HRSS)

Percentage of service users supported to achieve an overall improvement across their outcomes 

following a period of three months of housing related support which is the expected average length of 

support someone will receive.

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Percentage 98.0 99.0

Target 90 90

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

% 

People supported to maintain their 
accommodation 

Page 84



About the target range

This measure allows for no fluctuation against the target.

About benchmarking

No benchmarking data is available as this is a service commissioned specifically for Lincolnshire  and 

not part of a wider national programme.

Housing related support services help people to access and maintain accommodation in order to 

prevent them from needing more costly forms of support. This measure is crucial to ensure service 

quality, assessing needs highlighted versus needs met for all people accessing services. It also 

supports the Council to meet its Care Act responsibilities regarding prevention and supports wider 

Public Health Outcome Framework (PHOF) outcomes regarding housing. The target is aligned to the 

KPI in the provider's contract.

Further details

About the target

Page 85



Achieved

100.0
%

Quarter 2 September 2021

98
%

Target for September 2021

About the latest performance

"The continued increase in demand is being maintained by the Covid activities and confirms that last 

years trend will continue this year and is part of a trend away from 5 day activities towards the most 

urgent service levels. NRS are maintaining their high level of success and have adapted their 

operations to help prepare for an increase in demand as part of winter pressures.

"

The delivery of emergency and urgent pieces of equipment is crucial as the situations within which 

these are requested will often involve individuals who require equipment in order to support discharge 

from hospital, prevent hospital admission or provide end of life care. In the event of the death of a 

service user, it is crucial to commence the process of collecting equipment quickly to ensure that, 

where possible, it can be recycled to support other users who may have need for it. Emergency 

deliveries and collections are defined as being undertaken within 4 hours of receipt of the authorised 

order. Urgent deliveries are within 24 hours and urgent collections are within 48 hours of receipt of the 

authorised order. The measure is an amalgamation of four KPIs within the Integrated Community 

Equipment Service contract which consist of: Number of emergency deliveries (within 4 hours); number 

of emergency collections (within 4 hours); number of urgent deliveries (within 24 hours) and; number of 

urgent collections (within 48 hours).

Numerator: Number of emergency deliveries and collections within 4 hours, number of urgent deliveries 

within 24 hours and number of urgent collections within 48 hours.

Denominator: Total number of emergency and urgent deliveries and collections.

A higher percentage indicates a better performance.

113

Emergency and urgent deliveries and collections completed on time

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Percentage 100 100.0

Target 98 98

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

% 

Emergency and urgent deliveries and 
collections completed on time 

Page 86



No benchmarking data is available as this is a service commissioned specifically for Lincolnshire  and 

not part of a wider national programme.

About the target

This is a core commissioned service within the Community Wellbeing Commissioning Strategy and 

supports the Council to meet its Care Act responsibilities. Target is aligned to four KPIs within the 

Integrated Community Equipment Service contract.

About the target range

This measure allows for no fluctuation against the target.

About benchmarking

Further details

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Open Report on behalf of Andrew Crookham, 
Executive Director – Resources 

 

Report to: Adults and Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 1 December 2021 

Subject: 

 
Adults and Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee - Work 
Programme  
 

 

Summary:  

It is standard practice at each meeting for the Committee to consider its forward work 
programme, which is set out in the report.  The report also includes the latest version of the 
forward plan of key decisions due to be taken from 1 December 2021.    The Committee is 
requested to consider whether it wishes to make any suggestions for items to be added to its 
work programme. 
    
Following its consideration on 20 October 2021 of the proposal for the extra care housing 
scheme in Welton, the  Committee is requested to note the decision of the Executive on 
2 November to approve the scheme.   
 

 

Actions Required: 
 
(1) To review the Committee's work programme for the remainder of 2021-22, as set 

out in the report. 
  

(2) To note that following consideration by this Committee on 20 October 2021, a 
decision was made by the Executive on 2 November 2021 to approve the Welton 
Extra Care Housing Scheme. 
 

Page 89

Agenda Item 9



1. Current Items 
 
The Committee is due to consider the following items at this meeting: -  
 

1 December 2021 – 10.00 am  

Item Contributor(s) Notes 

1  
Mental Health 
Services  

Sarah Connery, Chief Executive, 
Lincolnshire Partnership NHS 
Foundation Trust 

Jane Marshall, Director of 
Planning, Strategy and 
Partnerships, Lincolnshire 
Partnership NHS Foundation 
Trust 

Justin Hackney, Assistant 
Director of Specialist Services 

On 29 June, 2021, the 
Committee requested an 
item on mental health 
services. 

2  

Occupational Therapy 
Service / Disabled 
Facilities Grants / 
Community 
Equipment Services 

Roz Cordy, Interim Assistant 
Director Adult Frailty and Long 
Term Conditions 

Gareth Everton, Head of 
Integration and Transformation 

Prashant Agrawal, Partnership 
Manager, Community 
Equipment Services 

On 29 June, 2021, the 
Committee requested an 
item on the occupational 
therapy service, disabled 
facilities grants and 
community equipment 
services. 

3  

Lincolnshire 
Safeguarding Adults 
Board – Update 
Report 

Heather Roach, Chair of 
Lincolnshire Safeguarding Adults 
Board 

David Culy, Lincolnshire 
Safeguarding Adults Board 
Business Manager 

This is a regular update 
report from the Board.  

4  

Performance Against 
Corporate 
Performance 
Framework – 2021-22 
Quarter 2 

Caroline Jackson, Head of 
Corporate Performance 

This is the quarterly 
performance report.    

 

Page 90



2. Planned Items  
 
Set out below are the items planned for future meetings of the Committee, up to April 2022.     

 

12 January 2022 – 10.00 am  

Item Contributor(s) Notes 

1  

Adult Care and 
Community Wellbeing 
Budget Proposals for 
2022-23 

Pam Clipson, Head of Finance, 
Adult Care and Community 
Wellbeing 

The views of the Committee 
will be sought on the budget 
proposals for Adult Care and 
Community Wellbeing 

2  
Annual Report of the 
Director of Public Health 
2021 

Derek Ward, Director of Public 
Health 

This is a requirement each 
year for Directors of Public 
Health.   

3  

Procurement of 
Residential Care and 
Residential with Nursing 
Care 

Alina Hackney, Head of 
Procurement - People 

This item enables the 
Committee to consider a 
proposed decision by the 
Executive on 1 February 
2022 on the procurement of 
residential care and 
residential with nursing 
care.  

 
 

23 February 2022 – 10.00 am  

Item Contributor(s) Notes 

1  

Performance Against 
Corporate Performance 
Framework – 2021-22 
Quarter 3 

Caroline Jackson, Head of 
Corporate Performance 

This is the quarterly 
performance report.    

2  All Age Autism Strategy To be confirmed. 
The strategy is due to be 
approved by the Executive 
on 1 March 2022.   

3  

Section 75 Agreement 
with Lincolnshire 
Partnership NHS 
Foundation Trust 

Justin Hackney, Assistant 
Director, Specialist Services 

This is due for decision by 
the Executive on 1 March 
2022. 

Page 91



23 February 2022 – 10.00 am  

Item Contributor(s) Notes 

4  
Overview of Adult Frailty 
and Long Term 
Conditions 

Roz Cordy, Interim Assistant 
Director Adult Frailty and Long 
Term Conditions 

This item enables the 
Committee to take an 
overview of services in the 
area of adult frailty and long 
term conditions.   

5  

The Re-commissioning of 
the Carers Support 
Service (or 23 February 
2022) 

Carl Miller, Commercial & 
Procurement Manager, 
Commercial Team - People 
Services 

The Executive Councillor for 
Adult Care and Public Health 
is due to make a decision on 
the proposed 
re-commissioning of the 
carers support service. 

 
 

6 April 2022 – 10.00 am  

Item Contributor(s) Notes 

1  

The Recommissioning of 
the Lincolnshire 
Community Equipment 
Service 

Alexander Craig, Commercial & 
Procurement Manager, 
Commercial Team - People 
Services 

This is due for decision by 
the Executive on 4 May 
2022. 

 
Other Potential Items 
 

 Legislation and Government White Papers: 
 Liberty Protection Standards (Legislation to be fully implemented by April 

2022) 
 Reforming Mental Health Act (published 13 January 2021, with consultation 

closed after fourteen weeks) 
 Health and Social Care (Integration and the Future Funding of Social Care) 
 Transforming Public Procurement (Green Paper consultation 15 December 

2020 to 15 March 2021)  

 Digital Roadmap Update 

 Post Covid-19: Issues, Outcomes and Progression 
 

The forward plan of planned key decisions on items within the remit of the Committee 
is attached as Appendix A. 

 
3. Executive Decision on Welton Extra Care Scheme 

 

Page 92



On 2 November 2021, the Executive approved the proposals for the Welton Extra Care 
Housing, which had been considered by this Committee on 20 October 2021.  
Minute 37 from the last meeting sets out in full the Committee’s consideration of this.   
 

4. Working Group - Reducing Sugar Consumption 
 
 On 8 September 2021, the Committee established a working group, comprising 

Councillors Hugo Marfleet, Andrew Key and Rob Kendrick, to consider means of 
supporting activity in Lincolnshire aimed at reducing sugar consumption in 
Lincolnshire.  The working group would support the activity of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board’s sub group, which focused on the reducing obesity priority in the 
Lincolnshire Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy.   

 
 The working group held its first meeting on 11 November 2021.  At this meeting a 

number of background documents were considered, together with information on 
some of the current services provided in Lincolnshire, such as the Lincolnshire Food in 
Schools team, operated by Public Health.  A further meeting is planned for 
mid-December.   

 
5. Conclusion 

 
The Committee is invited to consider its work programme.   

 
6. Appendices 
 

These are listed and attached at the end of the report. 
 

Appendix A 
Forward Plan of Key Decisions within the Remit of the Adults and 
Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee from 1 October 2021 

 
 
7. Background Papers - No background papers within Section 100D of the Local 

Government Act 1972 were used in the preparation of this report. 
 

This report was written by Simon Evans, Health Scrutiny Officer, who can be contacted on 
07717 868930 or by e-mail at Simon.Evans@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 

Page 93

file:///C:/Users/Simon.Evans/AppData/Roaming/OpenText/OTEdit/EC_imp/c52535812/mailto_Simon.Evans@lincolnshire.gov.uk


APPENDIX A 

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS WITHIN THE REMIT 
OF THE ADULTS AND COMMUNITY WELLBEING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

From 1 December 2021 
 

MATTER FOR DECISION 
DATE OF 
DECISION 

DECISION 

MAKER 

PEOPLE/GROUPS 

CONSULTED PRIOR 

TO DECISION 

OFFICERS FROM WHOM FURTHER 
INFORMATION CAN BE OBTAINED 

AND REPRESENTATIONS MADE 

(All officers are based at County 
Offices, Newland, Lincoln LN1 1YL 

unless otherwise stated) 

DIVISIONS 
AFFECTED 

Director of Public Health 
Annual Report 

7 Dec 
2021 

Executive n/a  
Public Health Consultant 
E-mail: 
Andy.Fox@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

All 

Residential and Nursing 
Framework Usual Costs 

1 Feb 
2022 

Executive 
Survey and analysis of the 
local provider market for 
residential and nursing care. 

 All 

Recommissioning of the 
Carers Support Service 

Between 
28 Feb - 
4 March 

2022 

Executive Councillor: 
Adult Care and Public 

Health 

Adults and Community 
Wellbeing Scrutiny 
Committee 

Commercial and Procurement 
Manager Email: 
Carl.Miller@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

All 

The Recommissioning of 
the Lincolnshire 
Community Equipment 
Service 

4 May 
2022 

Executive 

The Leader of the Council, 
Adult Care and Community 
Wellbeing Executive DLT, LCES 
Programme Board 

Senior Commercial and 
Procurement Officer E-mail: 
marie.kaempferice@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

All 

 

P
age 94

mailto:Andy.Fox@lincolnshire.gov.uk
mailto:Carl.Miller@lincolnshire.gov.uk

	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 20 October 2021
	5 Overview of Adult Mental Health Services in Lincolnshire
	5.1 - Overview of Mental Health Services Appendix A

	6 Occupational Therapy, Disabled Facilities Grants and the Lincolnshire Community Equipment Service
	7 Lincolnshire Adults Safeguarding Board - Update Report
	8 Service Level Performance against the Corporate Performance Framework - Quarter 2
	8.1 - Service Level Performance against the Corporate Plan Framework Appendix A

	9 Adults and Community Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee Work Programme

